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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Strategic Report

The Directors present their strategic report for Giobal Media & Entertainment Limited and its subsidiaries {the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Principal activities

The Group's principal acfivities during the year were the operation of commercial radio stations in the United
Kingdorm and the operations of cut-of-home media advertising in the UK and Eurcpe.

Business review

The business review discusses the significant matters which impacted Global Media & Entertainment Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiary undertakings (i.e. the Group) when viewed as a whole for the year ended 31
March 2020.

The Group's revenue has grown for the eleventh consecutive year, 24% up on prior year, largely through the
contribution of acquisitions made in both the current and prior period. This has been supported by increased
engagement with Global's portfolio of brands, both through innovative content for consumers and through
creative partnering with clients. This is reflected in our highest ever reach of 25 0m weekly listeners and strongest
performance to date from centent solutions partnerships.

The Group's continuing adjusted EBITDA of £255.3m (as defined on page 82 of the cansolidated accounts)
increased by 125% on the prior year figuse of £113.5m. The significant increase is largely due to the impact of the
adoption of IFRS 16 Leases in the year, with the charge under IFRS 16 of £106.4m being refiected in
amortisation and interest in the current year and therefore on a pre IFRS 16 basis the growth is 31%.

Overali the Group made an operating loss of £159.5m, largely due to a £219.1m impairment of Goodwill and
Intangible assets in the Qutdoor division, driven by the short-term impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic. Additionally
the Group increased digital investment, having entered the out-of-home advertising market. The forecasts were
impacted by the volatility on advertising spend caused by the national and subsequent local lockdowns which

- largely affected our outdoor advertising estate, particutarly the transport sector and specifically the London
Underground estate. The details of management's assumptions are also detailed in note 10 of the consolidated
financial statements

The key events within the year in relatian to both of our continuing cperations are lisied below:
Radio

Radio's perfarmance in the year remained in line with the prior period in terms of both the Revenue and
Operating profit levels, a strong performance given the decrease in confidence in the UK around December 2019
due to the General Election and then Brexit in January 2020 and most significantly the impact of Covid-19 in the
last two trading months of the year Before this period of uncertainty, radio had experienced 4% year on year
growth across its portfolio.

Global rebranded its Digital Audio Exchange (DAX) to Digital Ad Exchange in the year and launched across its
Outdoor estate in March 2020 DAX remains the world’s largest digital audio advertising platform and is a key
player in the programmatic advertising arena, with 2 growing number of publishers. The market remains dynamic,
with Global at the forefront and advertisers are increasingly directing greater levels of spend towards tools and
channels which allow more targeted and transparent campaigns. In the year, DAX achieved double digit growth
with aver 85% of revenue being recorded from third parties

During the year the Group launched seven new radic stations including LBC News, which provided key coverage
and debate around the General Election in December 2019 and other stations on Heart, Capital and Smooth
networks The new stations helped us to maintain revenue in the peried and outperform the commercial radio
market. (Source Radiocentre/Rajar)

Digital engagement with Global's brands has continued to grow year on year, with total digital hours up 37% on
2019. Growth has continued due to investment in Global Player and the increased use of smart speakers,
supported by new partnerships with Google and Amazon in regards to streaming our stations. During the
lockdown period from March — July 2020, we saw our digital listening hours grow by 53% compared to the
previous year.
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Group Strategic Report (continued)

Qutdoor

The CMA gave the Group clearance on 16 April 2019 for the completion of the “Semper Veritas Holdings S.a.r.l”
as referred to as the "Exterion Media Group” acquisition. Post approval from the CMA the Group obtained control
over Exterion Media Group and subsequently consolidated the results inta the Group’s consolidated
performance. The previously held investment was derecognised as discussed in note 13 of the consolidated
accounts and subsequently accounted for as a Business Combination under IFRS 3, as disclosed in note 24 of
the consolidated financial statements. The contribution post acquisition was £387.4m of revenue and an
operating loss of £7.0m

Given the importance of this acquisition to the Group, significant emphasis has been put on the integration of the
three Outdoor businesses into the Group, with further details provided in the Directors' report on page 12. The
acquisition has allowed us to operate as a leading player within the UK out-of-home media market and expand
our operations into Europe, with presence in the Netherlands, France, Ireland and Spain.

In October 2019 the Outdoor division finalised the acquisition of Business Boards in the Netherlands with the
acquisition accounting being reflected within the performance of the Group as at 31 March 2020; refer to note 24
of the consolidated financial statements for further details. In the year the Group has finalised the preliminary
accounting for the Outdoor Plus Limited and Primesight Limited groups acquired in the prior period.

In February 2020 BT awarded Global their advertising sales contract for street furniture across the UK which
includes Wi-Fi enabled digital street units andtraditional payphones. This three year partnership offers an
additional 18,000 advertising units within the UK, and incorporates the Group's newly launched ad platform DAX
into the digital street unit screens, enabling advertisers to buy truly dynamic digital outdoor at scale.

Buring the year the Group invested significantly into large format roadside digital screens across the UK,
providing advertisers with an attractive product at scale to reach consumers. The group now has over 373 large
format roadside digital screens in the UK, making Global's offering the largest in the UK.

In the current year, as discussed in the future developments and going concern section below, management had
to consider the potential impact that the Covid-19 pandemic would have on the future forecast cashflows of the
business for the impairment assessment as at 31 March 2020. Due to the impact of both national and local
lockdowns and low visibility on the effect that the pandemic would have on advertising in all of our markets,
especially on the London Underground estate and transport sector, management forecast a significant short-term
impact on the Qutdoor performance for the purposes of the annual impairment test. Subsequently an impairment
charge of £219.1m was recognised, further details on the assumptions made by management are discussed in
note 10 of the consolidated financial statements.

Other key highlights of the Group in the year are as follows:

Now in its third year, the prestigious Global Awards brought together all Global's radic staticns with, award
categories reflecting the music, programmes and news aired throughout the year.

As announced in prior pericd, the Group completed the disposal of its interest in music festivals with this largely
being completed in the first quarter of 2019/20. The disposal allowed the Group to focus on the digital offering
and integration of the Radio and Qutdoor businesses.

The Group made some significant Board appointments with the addition of Sally Cairns as Chief People Officer
and James Rea as Director of Broadcasting.

Giobal's Make Some Noise is the Group's charity, and continued to raise money for disadvantaged children and
young people and to give a voice to smaller charities that find it hard to get heard. Global's Make Some Noise
raised over £3.8m (2019 £4.5m) in the year, awarding grants to 32 new charities and projects across the UK and
continuing to provide training support to 64 charities. During the year, Global's Make Some Noise funded 98 live
grants, helping more than 39,000 peneficiaries.

Global continues to sponsor the Global Academy, a university technical college in Hayes, Middlesex, which
opened in 2016 and provides academic and vocational education for students who want to work in the broadcast
and digital media industry. For the second year the Group has offered apprentieships to students from the
academy for a training and work experience programme.
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Group Strategic Report (continued)

Financial performance
Revenue and operating profit

The consolidated income statement is set out on page 28 and shows continuing revenue for the year ended 31
March 2020 of £824 8m, a significant increase of £414 3m of which £387 4m was in relation to the Exterion Media
Group. In the year the Group made a continuing operating loss of £159.5m compared to an operating profit of
£49.3m in prior period. The decrease in the profit from prior period was due to an impairment charge of £219.1m,
deai-related costs and non-recurring charges for the year as disclosed on page 82 of the consolidated financial
statements.

Adjusted EBITDA

The Directors consider that adjusted EBITDA (as defined on page 82 within the Group financial statements)
represents a key measure of the business performance, as it demonstrates the underlying trading performance by
excluding the effects of non-recurring items. The Directors also review the results pre adjustments for IFRS 16 and
therefore the adjusted EBITDA for the year of £148 9m showed growth of £35 4m (31.2%) from £113.5m for the
previous year.

Impairment charge

The Group incurred a £219.1m impairment of intangibles charge as discussed in the Business review section and
the Future developments section in relation to the forecast impact of Covid-19. Refer to note 10 of the
consolidated financial statements for further details of the assumptions taken by management. The Directors
consider that the impairment charge is a one off and was not reflective of the operations of the business in the
current year

IFRS 16

The adoption of IFRS 16 from 1 April 2019 has resulted in additional depreciation of £87 8m and an interest
charge of £23.7m, which offsets the impact on adjusted EBITDA of transition of £106.4m in the year ended 31
March 2020. The net impact on profit before tax for the year ended 31 March 2020 was £3.6m; refer to Note 20 of
the consolidated financial statements for further details.

Other expenses

Other expenses in the current year includes the adoption of IFRS 16 of £106.4m as discussed above Other
expenses on a continuing basis after the impact of IFRS 16 has been deducted, saw an increase from £64 2m to
£89.3m (39.1%). The increase was targely due to the increase of amortisation and depreciation on intangible and
tangible assets due to the acquisition of the Outdoor businesses. Refer to page 82 of the consolidated financial
statements for further details.

Disposal of Festivals operations

The disposal of the festivals operations contributed a loss of £2.3m in the year unti disposal, compared to the
twelve-month foss of £3.1m in prior period The festival operations are disclosed as discontinued operations in
the consolidated financial statements, refer to Note 1 where it discusses the restatement of prior period
comparatives.
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Group Strategic Report (continued)

Financial performance

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2019
£m £m
Radic 3588 358.4
Outdcor 466.0 521
Revenue from continuing cperations 824.8 410.5
Direct costs from continuing cperations (303.8) {105.5)
Gross profit 521.0 3050
Operating expenses from continuing operations (372.1) {191.5)
Adjusted EBITDA pre IFRS 16 148.9 113.5
FRS 16 transition adjustiment 106.4 -
Adjusted EBITDA ’ 255.3 113.5
Impairment of Intangible assets . (218.1) -
Other expenses (inciuding IFRS 16) (195.7) (B4 2)
Operating profit/(loss) from continuing operations (159.5) 493

Note 1: Direct costs exclude depreciation, amortisation and charges or credits relating to non-recurring items
including restructuring and integration costs such as launch costs inciuding rebranding, redundancy costs,
impairments of any Goodwill or Intangible assets and vacant property provisions outside of the scope of IFRS 15,
as well as costs of acquisition. This was consistent with prior year.

Note 2: Adjusted EBITDA comprises earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and is stated
befere any charges or credits relating to non-recurring items including restructuring and integration costs such as
launch costs inciuding rebranding, redundancy costs, impairments of any Goodwill or Intangible assets and
vacant property provisions outside of the scope of IFRS 18, as well as costs of acquisition. This was consistent
with prior year.

Going concern

The Board continue to closely monitor the evolving Covid-19 situation. The impact of Covid-19 on the business
performance and the Group's liquidity position experienced during the lockdown period has been incorporated
into the Directors’ consideration in assessing the appropriateness of the Board's adoption of the going concemn
assumption used in the preparation of the Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

The Directors have prepared forecasts for a range of cash flow scenarios, including base case, low cases, and
worst case from the date of approval of these financial statements. The key assumptions in the modelled
scenarios relate to the speed of the recovery of the advertising market and the rate and scale of delivery of
advertising on our Outdoor inventory as audiences return.

Since year end the Directors have taken the following steps to ensure the Group continues as a Going Concern:

+ Reached formal agreement with its existing lending syndicate of banks providing external borrowing
facilities in regards to the requirements of covenants until September 2021, with further detail disclosed
in Section 1: Basis of preparation in the notes to the consolidated financial statements on page 34.

+ Took steps to manage the cashflow of the Group as discussed in the section Future developments
below.

The Board continues to monitor performance against the scenarios as well as internal and external analysis to
inform its planning and decision making and will continue to manage its costs and cash appropriately. For further
details on the reasons why the Directors believe that these financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis see Section 1: Basis of preparation in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Future developments

The Covid-19 lockdown period in the UK, North America and Europe led many companies to react immediatety
and to reduce their advertising spend, which has negatively impacted both our Radio and Outdoor operations in
the short term. Once lockdown measures began to be fifted, we saw an uplift in advertising on both our radio
stations and-street advertising platforms, but less in relation te transport inventory, especially on the London
Underground estate as people travelled into London less frequently.

Looking forward, the global advertising market remains highly volatile with low visibility, especially in regard to the
local impact that the pandemic will have on our Outdoor business. Considering the risk of new waves of Covid-19
and new fockdowns being implemented we consider there will be significant impact on our shart term
performance as evidenced by the impairment charge of £219 1m in our Cutdoor operations as disclosed in Note
10 of the financial statements

Across the first half of the financial year 2021, the Directors took a number of measures to reduce the overhead
costs and ensure the future success of the Group both in the short-term and long term. These included a
restructuring programme, deferring expenditure on capital projects and discretionary expenditure including
marketing spend, implementing a salary sacrifice scheme for senior leadership including the Board of Directors
and freezing recruitment and pay rises across the business.

In & media landscape that is increasingly fragmented, radio and out-of-home advertising retains its attractiveness
to advertisers due to the fast turnaround of campaigns and the reach the Group has across its combined Radio
and Outdoor estate. With DAX, the largest digital audio ad sales platform in the UK and one of the biggest in the
world, our ability to retain and win new contracts, and the high quality of cur teams across the geographies in
which we operate, we believe we are well pasitioned to return to our pre-pandemic trading results in the medium-
term. The strength of our balance sheet is a key competitive advantage that will allow us to pursue further
external growth opportunities as they arise and to continue to invest significantly in digital.

Principat risks and uncertainties

The principal risks faced by the business can be divided into operational, commercial, financial and credit risks.
The risks are monitored and managed at a Group leve! and by local management teams. Whilst the Board
undertook a review of these risks in February, since then an additionai risk arose in regard to the Covid-19
pandemic.

Cowvid-19

The Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in unprecedented challenges for crganisations globally and, as with most
businesses in all geographies in which we operate, Global has been negatively impacted. The pandemic and
related government responses and interventions have resulted in operational uncertainty and have heightened
many of our existing risks The Board and senior leadership teams have taken action in regards to trying to limit
the impact of the pandemic on our business. The Group has set up a broadcasting recovery centre to limit any
potential operational risk on our Radio broadcasting centres. The Board and senior leadership continue to meet
regularly so appropriate and timely action can be taken to ensure the future of the Group. Refer to the Future
developments for further actions taken by the Board.

Operational risk

Reduced audience levels at the Group's stations or reach across the out-of-home media estate could erode the
Group's position, products in local markets, national or international markets. The Group promeotes its radio
brands and outdoor inventory regularly and continually strives to improve programming standards to increase
audiences and encourage digital outdoor advertising. The Group carries out research on its listeners, building
profiles of their likes and dislikes, and uses this to develop both the sound of the stations, and the music they
play.

The Group has mitigated these risks by extending its presence in the digital advertising market with further
investment in its DAX proposition and outdoor advertising structures in the year, including international expansicn
through the acquisition of Exterion Media Group in order to extend its impact across a wider consumer base. Post
year-end this has been significantly impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic and has impacted the operations of the
Group for the 2021 year end, as discussed in the future developments section.

Commercial risk

There is a risk that weakness in the advertising market couid put pressure on traditional revenue streams. To
address this, the Group has been developing its relationship with advertisers and agencies to ensure that the
vaiue of its brands is fully realised. This inciudes offering tailored solutions to advertisers and highlighting the
breadth of the Group's products, which was enhanced with the integration of the Outdoor division. The
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development of new media opportunities is at the hearnt of the Group’s strategy, which will continue to reduce the
pressure on our traditional revenue sources.

While the impact of the United Kingdom leaving the European Union is hard to assess, we do not consider this a
significant risk to the Group. We do consider that the exit may have other related factors such as the impact of a
tougher UK business environment on interest rates and therefore long-term bond yields or changes in foreign
exchange rates, as the Group expands internaticnally and increases trading in other currencies.

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, post year-end the Group has seen an unprecedented chailenge to advertising
revenues on both the Group’s Radio stations and QOutdoor advertising platforms. Radio saw a more moderate
decline through the lockdown period and a faster return to normal trading levels, as advertisers recognised the
strength of the medium, and audiences to the Group's radio stations remained robust and grew on digital
platforms. Qutdoor advertising decline was felt more significantly, in particular in the transport sector including
Londen Underground. Recovery rates for the Outdoor business are more positive for rcadside and retait
products, but remain challenging in transport, especially in central London. The impact on the short-term future
has been discussed in the Future development section.

Financial risk

The Group is primarily funded by both related party and bank debt. Bank debt has increased in the year due to
the acquired debt as disclosed in Note 15 of the consolidated financial staternents. The Group’s operations are
cash-generative, and general exposure to liquidity risk is considered to be low. The Group monitors performance
against its banking covenants on a quarterty basis. Due to the Covid-19 pandemic the Group has renegotiated
the bank covenants, which is discussed in the Going Concern section below.

Credit risk

The Group actively mitigates the risk of payment default by its customers using trade credit insurance and by
reviewing cutstanding payments and provisions for payment default regularly. Overall this risk has not
significantly increased due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Liquidity risk
To maintain liquidity and ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future

developments, the Group uses long-term debt finance. The Group has not significantly altered its working capital
management strategies durnng the year and was not subject to any externally-imposed requirement in this regard.

Financial instruments

The Group's risk management process and the policies for mitigating certain type of risks are set out in note 17.
Details of the financial instruments used for these purposes are in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Key performance indicators

The business uses key performance indicators which are monitored on a reguiar basis and inciude audience
trends such as weekly reach, listening hours, share of the market and demographic mix as well as financial
indicators such as revenue, adjusted EBITDA and operating margins. Variance analysis is performed monthly,
the results of which are monitored and discussed within a formal meeting structure.

Section 172 statement

The Group's long term success is at the forefront of the Board's thinking and the Directors have full regard for their
duties and the matters set out in Section 172 of the UK Companies Act 2008. Indeed, it's the Board's belief that
the Group can only be successful when the interest of those it works with are considered, and particularly when
customer, supplier, employee, shareholder interests and the environment, climate and societies we operate in are
understood and responded to and appropriately reflected in how the business develops. The table below discusses
how the Board engages with the stakeholders to promote the success of the Group, with regard to the factors set
out in Section 172 (1) of the Companies Act 2006.

Stakeholders Major stakeholders, their interests and how the Board engages

Customers The Group is dedicated to building deep and meaningful client
experiences, whether through our direct contact, through special events
such as “Your audience awaits” roadshow, through virtual experiences
online and through our services. The quality of this engagement is critical
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to facilitating our customers’ campaigns. Client satisfaction is measured
through satisfaction surveys as well as our ability to retain existing
customers and recruit new ones.

In the year the Group also employed a new customer suppert team for
listeners and customers, where all complaints and enquiries can be dealt
with in a timely manner. A weekly customer satisfaction report is posted
on the internal Workplace intranet.

Employees

The Group is focused on ensuring that employees are well-informed of
its key imperatives including its philosoephy, values and ethics and the
common guidelines and policies that support them. This includes the
provision of an internal Facebock Workplace platform for open
communication, quarterly company meetings presented by Board
members, and guestion and answer sessions allowing individuals to
raise questions and concerns directly to Board members. These
sessions became of greater importance and were held more frequently,
although virtualty, during the Covid-19 lockdown period.

Empioyee engagement surveys are performed annually to hughiight
areas for improvement in communication of the Group's purpose and
objectives. The Board considers the results of these surveys to be a
good barometer of the workforce’s confidence in the Group's strategic
direction, optimism for the future and career opportunities.

The Board has intensified its focus on the involvement of the workforce
in both the culture of the company and diversity and inclusion (D&!)

The Group has launched the Different Dancers Same Beat initiatives
and formed the "RISE” (BAME) Committee, Pride network and other
diversity groups. The Board censiders that D&l is important for the future
of the Group and is a key focus in the 2021 financial pericd. The Group's
internal code of conduct (Global's Guide to Fairness and Global's Guide
to doing the right thing), provides the ethical principles for all Global
employees, which refiect our core values and expectations.

Suppliers

The Group is strongly commitled tu cunducling its business in compliance
with all applicable labour and employment-related laws, rules and
regulations of every location in which we do business and across our
supply chain. This includes, but is not limited to, laws, rules and
regulations relating to wages and hours worked, equal employment
opportunity, non-discrimination, harassment, immigration and work
authgrisation, privacy, collective bargaining, and child, prison and forced
labour.

The approach to partnering with suppliers is governed by a prescribed
Respansibility Sourcing Policy. Reflecting the internal code of conduct,
this policy sets out expectations and requirements regarding issues such
as respect of labour laws, forced and slave labour, human rights, the
environment and anti-corruption. The Group carefully selects suppliers
and business partners and maintains business relationships with those
that share a commitment to high ethical standards. Global expects its
suppliers and business pariners tc comply with applicable laws, rules and
regulations as well as our Responsible Sourcing Policy.

Shareholder

The shareholder receives regular and timely information (at least weekly)
including the financial performance of the business, strategy, operationat
matters, market conditions and sustainability, all supported by Key
Performance Indicators (KPis).

The shareholder has been regularly updated on the Covid-19 situation
and its impact on the company.

Environment/community/society

The environment and the impact that the Group has on the environment
has been on the Group’'s green agenda for the past 10 years and it
continues to evaluate how to reduce the Group’s operations’ impact on
the environment. In the current year the Group’s warehouses decreased
their carbon footprint by almost 6% which was 1% more than the set goal
for the 2019 calendar year. In addition, the Group's Cutdgor division has

10
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seen decreasing carbon emissions year on year for the past seven years.
UK offices are now all running on 100% renewable energy and are also
free from single use plastic. In the current year the Qutdoor division
worked with suppliers to distribute greener vinyl on all of the Outdoor
estate, whilst also reviewing all the suppliers used to ensure they meet
the same high standards as adhered to by the Group. The commitment
from the Cutdeor division has been recognised by their being awarded the
Green Apple award in November 2019. Global is the only company in its
sector to receive this award which recognises Globat for goid standard,
environmental practices.

The Directors do not just consider that the Group's advertising operations
are of a commercial nature but also provide important public information.
The Group values the importance of the communities in which we operate
and the value we add to society as a corporate company, such as
charitable work through Global Make Some Noise, our Academy and
other important campatigns. In March 2020 the Group supported the ‘Clap
for our Carers’ campaign where we amplified the sentiment on both our
Radio stations and Qutdoor advertising inventory. On 26 March 2020 and
until the campaign ended in May 2020 all of our radio stations paused for
the nationwide salute with applause from listeners and presenters as well
as the poignant stones of the frant-line of the fight against Covid-19,

This report was approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

D.D. Singe
Director
5 November 2020
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Group Directors’ Report

The Directors present the Directors’ repaort and the audited financial statements of the Group and the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2020.

Results and dividends

The loss for the year after taxation amounted to £202 9m (2019:£23.8m). The Directers do not recommend the
payment of a dividend (2019 £nil)

Directors

The Directors who served during the year and to the date of this report were:
Lord Allen of Kensington CBE {Chairman)

A.D. Tabor-King CBE

5.G. Miren

R.F.J. Park (resigned August 2019 and reappointed May 2020)
M. Gordon (resigned August 2018 and reappointed April 2020)
W. Harding (resigned August 2019 and reappeinted Aprii 2020)
I.L. Hanson (resigned August 2018)

D.D. Singer

S Cairns {appointed April 2020)

J.A Rea (appointed April 2020)

L. Taviansky (appointed April 2020)

D.J. Henderson (appoinied June 2020}

Political and charitable contributions

Global Charities, trading as Global's Make Some Noise, is the Group's charity, and continued to raise money for
disadvantaged children and young pecple and to give a voice to smaller charities that find it hard to get
heard. Global's Make Some Noise raised over £3.8m (2019: £4.5m) in the year, awarding grants to 32 new charities
and projects across the UK and continuing to provide training suppoert 1o 64 charities. During the year, Global's Make
Some Noise was funding 98 live grants, helping more than 39,321 beneficiaries. In the prior period the Group’s
charities also received £0.4m for the Big Music Project, which was fully funded by grants from the Big Lottery Fund.

As well as providing significant radio airtime to promote the activities and events of its charities, the Group provides
a number of services to these charities, including the use of offices and administration services, free of charge.

The Group’'s donations te charities amounted to £0.2m (2019: £0.2m). No centributions were made to political
organisations. The chantable and political donations of the Company amounted to £nil (2018: £nil).

Future developments

The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted the Company's performance post year end. however in the medium to lang
term the Directors expect the Company to continue operating at the general level of activity reported for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

Financial instruments

The Group’s risk management process and the policies for mitigating certain type of risks are set out in note 17
Details of the financial instruments used for these purposes are in hote 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Non-financial key performance indicators

The Directors regularly assess the performance of the Group with a number of financial indicators, though the main
nen-financial measures are radio audience figures, as recorded in RAJAR surveys, and cutdocr advertising reach
as measured by Route, a joint industry body producing estimates for out-of-home advertising. These figures are used
commercially, in terms of determining campaign value, but also as a guide as to how each brand, location and format
is performing. Both RAJAR results and Route data are based on statistical calculations based on surveys completed
by members of the public and are published quarterly.

Employee involvement

As discussed in the Section 172 statement in the strategic report, the Group places considerable value on the
invotvement of its people and has centinued to keep them informed on matters affecting their empioyment and on a
range of factors affecting the performance of the Group and the Company. In the current year the Board appointment
of Sally Cairns as Chief People Officer provided additional focus on increasing employee involvement amongst the
enlarged group. This is achieved through formal and informal meetings, including regular panel interviews with Board
members and presenters from the Group's broadcast centres, the introduction of Networking breakfasts hosted by
the Group CEO and local coffice visits to enhance the integration of the Outdoor division.

12
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Climate change

The Group's emission reduction target is to reduce its gross, global scope 1 and 2 emissions in tonnes of CO2e by
5% from 2019-2020 to 2020-2021. The Directors continue to not identify climate change as a significant risk to the
Group but do believe that everyone has a responsibility to reduce their own impact.

The Group actively pursues a policy of reducing and recycling waste across its locations, informing procurement
decisions across single-use plastics to hybrid company cars as discussed within the Governance section.

The Group is required to report annuaily on the quantity of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions in tonnes emitted
as a result of activities for which its responsible. All data for the financial year ended 31 March 2020 is disclcsed
here for scope 1 and 2 emissions.

Indicator 2020
Total gross (CO2e emissions (tCO2¢e) 6,260
Scope 1: Direct emissions (tCO2e) 445

Scope 2: In-direct emissions ({C0O2e) 5,234
Scope 3: Transport data (tCO2e) 581

Carbon offsets used to compensate for remaining emissions (C0O2e) 2,562
Total annual net emissions 3,698

Source 2020 emissions data 15 in line with the UK Government's environmental reperting guidance We have measured our scope 1, scope 2 and
partial scope 3 emissions Electncity and gas are the primary and only utihties used, there 1s transport activily but no heating or cooling purchases
Emissicns from air conditroning and refrigeration units in office buildings excluded due to cost of data coliection These are estimated to account for
less than O 5% of total scope 1 emissions We have chosen the metric gross global scope 1,2 and 3 emissions in tonnes of CO2e per square meter
of total area of entire portfolio as this 183 @ common business metric for our industry sector

Social matters and human rights

Global impacts the social fabric of the United Kingdom both through the programming and events it provides to its
audiences, and afso through how it operates as an organisation. i

As an employer, Global seeks to create a socially diverse environment where individuals are able to thrive
regardless of ethnicity, gender, age, disability or sexuality, and upholds a fairness policy addressing equal
opportunities and diversity throughout the Group's operations. In the year all staff of manager level and above
completed training in regards to unconscious bias.

The Group is fully committed to ensuring it does not participate in, or facilitate, the violation of human rights. Its
Modemn Slavery Act Statement addresses how the Group identifies, addresses and prevents modern slavery in its
business and wider supply chain. This statement is available on the company website and is reviewed annually.

Global has also published Privacy and Data Protection policies as well as an Information Security policy, detailing
how it manages and stores individuals' information whether they are employed by, or providing information to, the
Group.

Global interacts with a large number of individuals during the ordinary course of its operations and as such, has a
safeguarding policy in place for dealing with children or vulnerable adults to ensure their safety while they are with
us.

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery

All of the Group’s employees are required to read and to acknowledge the policy on anti-corruption and bribery.
The implications of not following the policy are set out in the guide issued and available to all staff.
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7Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Directors’ Report (continued)
Disabled employees

Appilications for employment from disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the abilities of the
applicant concerned. As a people-focussed business, we make sure that we recruit the right persen for the job every
time, whatever their background.

In the event of a member of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the
Group continues and that appropriate adjustments are made. ltis the policy of the Group and the Company that the
training. career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of
other employees.

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions

The Directors benefit from gqualifying third party indemnity provisions in place. The Group also provided qualifying
third-party indemnity provisions to certain Directors of associated companies during the financial year.

Matters covered in the strategic report

Details of the principal risks faced by the Group, including operational risk, credit risk and liquidity risk atong with
customer and supplier engagement are discussed in the Group Strategic Report

Provision of information to the auditor
Each of the persons who are Directors at the time when this Directors’ Report is approved has confirmed that:
. so far as that each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group and the

Company's auditor is unaware; and

« that each Director has taken all the steps that cught to have been taken as a Director in order to be aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group and the Company's auditor is aware of that
infermation.

Auditor

Linder section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006, Deloitte LLP will be deemed to have been reappeinted as auditor
28 days after these financial statements were sent to members or 28 days after the latest date prescribed for filing
the accounts with the registrar, whichever is earlier.

D.D. Singer \/

Director

5 November 2020
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financiai statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union and the parent company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards
and applicable law), including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclasure Framework. Under company law the Directors must
not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period.

In preparing the parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
¢« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

In preparing the group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors:

+ properly select and apply accounting policies;

+ present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

« provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity's financial position and financial performance; and

+ make an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financia! position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements compiy with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. )
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GLOBAL MEDIA & ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

1. Gpinion
In our opinion:

e the financial statements of Global Media & Entertainment Limited {the ‘parent company’) and its
subsidiaries (the ‘group’) give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s
affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

e the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;

* the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disciosure
Framework”; and

s the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

® the group income statement;

the group statement of comprehensive income;

the group statement of financial position;

the group statement of changes in equity;

the group statement of cash flows;

* the related notes to the group financial statements 1 to 31;

*  the company statement of financial position ;
the company statement of changes in equity; and
the related notes to the company financial statements i to 9.

The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is
applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Unton. The financia! reporting framework that has been
applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdem Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

2. Basis for opinicn

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Counci’s {the
‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and approgriate to pravide a basis for our
opinion.
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independent Auditor’'s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

3. Summary of our audit approach
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited {(continued)
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independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiaiity for the financial statements as a whole as

follows:

Group financial statements Farent company financial statements
Materiality £6.0m {2016 £6.0m} £2.9m (2019: £4.5m)
Basi§ fo.r . Qur cetermination of materiality is reflective  Parent company materiality equates to 2%
detern.'mtnng of our consideration of a range of possible (2019: 2%} of company only net liabilities
materiality outcomes using an Adjusted EBITDA (see anc is capped at 48% [2019:75%) of Group

note 2) Materizlity of £6.0m represents
2.4% (2019: 5.0%) of this measure. The
reduction in benchmark percentage
compared to the prior year reflects the
increased risk due to Covid-19.

materiality. The reduction in the cap reflects
the increased risk due to Covid-19

Rationale for the

Adjustec EBITDA is considered to represent

The parent company holds the Group's

benchmark the single most important key performance  related party borrowings, these are the only
applied indicators of the Group and the area of instruments of significance in the parent only
interest of major stakeholders. financiai statements.
: _ B
" -y

6.2. Performance materiality

We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate,

uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

Group performance materiality was set at 70% of group materiality for the 2020 audit {2018: 70%)]. In

determining performance materiality, we considered the foliowing factors:

e our risk assessment, including our assessment of the Group’s overall control environment; and
*  our past experience of the audit, which has indicated a low value of corrected and uncorrected
misstatements identified in pricr periods.

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Board of Directors that we would report to the Board all audit differences in excess of
£0.3m (2019: £0.3m), as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on
qualitative grounds. We also report to the Board on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the
cverall presentation of the financial statements.
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independent Auditor’'s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

7.

Ar overview of the scope of our audit

7.1. ldentification and scoping of components

The Group completed the acquisition of Exterian Media Group on 16 April 2013, As a result of the acouisition

there was a significant change in the structure of the Group from last year which had a significant impact on the
scope of cur audit. Following the acguisition of Exterion, the Outdoor business of the Group significantly
increased in size and has operations outside of the JK.

The parent company and the majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are centrally managed from the head

office in London, with the exception of the in-country teams of the Qutdoor business. Our audit was scoped by

obtaining an understanding of the Group anc 1ts control environment, and assessing the nisks of matenial
misstatement at the Group level.

We consicer that the Group camprises three components:

Radio: the Radio component is considered a financially significant component of the Group
representing 43% of the Group's revenue anc 41% of the Group's adjusted EBITDA. Accordingly, full
scope audit procedures have been performed to 2 component materiality of £2 9m.

Cutdoor: the Outdoar component 1s financially significant ta the Group foliowing the acquisition of
Exterion with the component now accounting for 55% of the Group’s revenue and 59% of the Group’s
adjusted EBITDA. Accoerdingly, a mixture of full scope procedures, specifiec procedures and analytical
reviews have been performed to a component materiality in the range of £0.4m to £2.3m.

Festivals: the Festival entities are ingivicually immaterial to the Group with the aggregate accounting
for 2% of the Groug’s revenue and 0% of the Group’s acdjusted EBITDA. Following the disposal of the
component during the year analytical procedures were performed by the Group team udsing group
matenality.

The components identified above are consistent with the repartable segments set out in note 2 to the financial
statements and have been selected based on their size in the context of the Group as a whole.

Cur a.dit work on these components, excluding the parent company, was executec at levels of mateniality

ranging between FO.4m and £2 9m which were lower than Group materiahty of £6.0m. Qur audit coverage with
respect to Group revenue and adjusted EBITDA:

7% EES

22%

Revenue

71%

Fuit gudit scope R I

Specified audit procedures BRI T N

Analytical review s
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

7.2. Component auditors
As gescribed above the Group operates outsice the UK and as a result we have engaged with component
auditors to complete the audit this year. The Group aucit team exercises its oversight of component auditors
using a carefully designed programme, which considers a vanety of factors including the size of entity and
number of significant risks. This programme is put in place to ensure that appropriate guidance i1s providea to
the component auditors through a combination of:

- upfront planning meetings with all component teams;
— central review of documentation; and
—  risk assessment giscussions and detailec workpaper reviews.

These are designed so that the Senior Statutory Auditor or a senior member of the Group audit team visits all
key locations across the Group on a regular basis however, given the impact of Covid-19 this was not possible
this year. As a result this year we have held regular virtual meetings with the compaonent aduditors and reviewing
their work remotely in order to ensure appropriate supervision of the work performed. In adaition we assess
the competence of each of cur component auditors in years when we do not visit 3 key location we:

— nclude the component audit partner in our team planning meeting;
— discuss their risk assessment; and
- review documentation of the findings from their work and discuss with them as needed.

We also hold meetings with management at a regional and global level in order to upoate cur understanding of
the Group and its environment on an gngoing basis.

8.  Other information

The cirectors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual repart, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report therecn.

Our opinion on the financidl statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, cur responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
cur knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there 1s a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

§.  Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited {continued)

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and
Lsing the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the
parent company or to cease operations, or have ne realistic alternative but to do so.

10, Auditor’s resoonsibilities for the audit of the finangia statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance shout whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issde an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high tevel of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an aud:t conductec in
agccordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaterments can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, naividually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the econcmic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

A further gescription of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's
website at: www.frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsitiiities. This description forms part of our auditar’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11, Opinions on other matiers orescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared s consistent with the financial statements; and

. the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstaterments in the strategic report or
the directors’ report.

12, Matters on which we are required to report Dy exception

12.1. Adeguacy of explanations received and accounting records
Uncer the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

*  zdeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns aaeguJate for cur
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting recerds and
returns.

We have nothing to rebort in respect of these matters.

12.2. Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to repart if in our opinicn certain disclosures of directors’
remunerzation have not been made.

We have nothing to report in respect of this matter.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Revenue
Direct costs
Gross profit from continuing operations

Administrative expenses

Note

Operating profit from continuing operations before impairment

Impairment of intangible assets
Operating (loss)/profit from continuing operations

Finance income

Finance expense

Net finance costs

Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax
Loss before taxation from continuing operations
Income taxcharge

Loss for the year from continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Loss for the year from discontinued operafions

Loss for the year

Attributable to:

Owners ofthe Company
Non-controlling interests

10

12

22

"These numbers have been restated, refer to note 1 for explanation

The nates on pages 34 tc 81 form part of these financial statements.
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Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2019
£000 £'000
824,817 410,484
(303,833) (105,535)
520,984 304,949
(461,427) (255,648)
59,557 49,301
{219,100) -
{159,543) 49301
121,859 18.696
{140,901) (81.687)
(19,042) (62.991)
1,219 1,108
(177,366) (12.582)
(23,285) (8.134)
(200,651) (20.716)
(2,292) (3.114)
(202,943) (23 830)
(205.824) (26,070)
2,881 2,240
(202,943) (23.830)




Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

Note March 2020 March 2019

£'000 £'000

Loss for the year (202,943) (23.830)
ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Actuanal loss related to the pension scheme 21 (1,010} (1,365)

Foreign exchange gain/ (loss) 4,775 {51

Deferred tax on actuarial ioss 19 156 98

Other comprehensive profit/ {loss) for the year, net of tax 3,921 {(1.777)

Total comprehensive loss for the year (199,022) (25.807)

Attributable to

Owners of the Company (201,903) (27 .847)

Norn-controlling interests 22 2,881 2240

(199,022) (25.607)

‘These numbers have been restated, refer to note 1 for explanation

The notes on pages 34 to 81 form part of these financial statements.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2020

Registered number: 06251684

21 March 2020

31 March 2019’

Note £'000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangitrle assets 10 839,898 722115
Property, plant and equpment " 173,778 90.381
Right-of-use assels 20 392,315 -
Equity accounted investments 12 1,326 1464
Investments 13 834 428237
Surplus ondefined benefit pension scheme 21 2,794 1626
Deferred tax asset 19 29,127 -
1,440,072 1243803
Current assets
Inventory 1,049 257
Current tax assets 805 -
Trade and other receivables 14 255,639 124 990
Cash and cash equivalents 83,728 88271
341,221 213518
Total assets 1,781,293 1.457.321
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 239,134 160.125
Income tax liabilibes 1,971 5.852
Lease liabilities 20 87,703 -
Borrowings 16 69,094 64.134
Provisions 18 5,898 1413
403,800 231524
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 70 -
Employee berefils 21 6,100 -
Lease liahilities 20 340,510 B
Borrowings 16 1,485,734 1.552.349
Prowvisions 18 18,959 10,051
Deferred tax liabity 19 81,576 23.061
1,932,949 1585461
Totat liabilities 2,336,749 1,816,985
Net liabilities {555,458) (359.664)
EQUITY
Share capital 23 171,889 171,888
Retained deficit {727,345) (531.553)
(555,456) (359.664)
Attributable to:
Shareholders’ funds (558,181) (371.385)
Non-controlling interests 22 2,725 11721
Total equity (555,456) (359.664)

These numbers have been restated refer to note 1 for explanation

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 5 November 2020
and were signed on its behalf by:

£

Director
5 November 2020
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2020

At1 April 2018
L oss for the year

Non-centrolling interest share of profit
Divdends paid to non-controlling interests

Non-controling interests acguired dunng the year
Actuanal loss related to the pension scheme

Foreign exchange movements
Fair value of put option payments
Deferred tax on actuanal loss

At 31 March 2029

At 1 April 2019 as previousiy stated
Restatement (see note 1)

At 1 April 2019 rastated

L oss for the year

Non-controling interest share of profit
Diwdends pand to non-coniroling interests

Non-controling interests disposed dunng the year
Actuanal loss related to the pension scheme
Foreign exchange movements

Fair value of put ophon payments

iovement In put option resenes

De_(erred tax on acluanal loss

At 31 March 2020

Share capital Put option Retained deficit Totai Non-controiling Total equity
resarve interasts
Note
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'900 £'000

171889 (25415) {490,927) (344 ,453) 12,710 (331.743)
o - (34,977 (34.877) - {34.977)

22 - - 2.240 2.240
22 _ _ - (3.428) (3428
22 - - - 199 199
21 - - (1 365} (1.365) (1365)
- (510) {(510) - (510}

815 - 215 a15

19 - - 98 98 - 98
171,889 (24,500) {527,681) (380,292) 11,721 {368,671)

171.889 (24,500} {527.681) (380,292) 11,721 (388571

1 - 8,007 B.807 8907
171,888 (24 500) (518,774) (371.385) 11,721 (359,664)

- (205.824) (205,524)“- - (205 824)

22 - 2.881 2881
22 - - (2155 (2.155)
22 - - (9.722} (9.722)
21 - - (1.010) (1.010) - {1010y
(507 4775 4168 - 4168

gy (9.393) (9,383} - (9.393)
1(gr/ 25 25107 - 25107 - 25107
19 - - 156 156 - 156
171,889 (730,070} (568,181) 2,725 {565,456}
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cash filows from operating activities
Loss for the year from continuing operations
Loss far the year from discontinued operations

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortisation

Right of use assels depreciafion

Loss ondisposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss ondisposal of intangitle assets

Net finance costs

Share of profits of equity-accounted investments
Movement in retirement benefit obligations

Fair value movermeant on put option

Movement in unrealised foreign exchange

Loss / (profit) on dispesal of investments and subsidiary undertakings
Impairment loss

ncome t&x charge

Increase ininventories

Increase in trade and other receivables
Decrease intrade and other payables
Decrease 1n provisions

Cash flows generated from operations

interest paid

Income taxes patd

Net cash tlows trom operating activities

Net cash flows from operabing activities - continuing
Net cash flows from operatng activiies - discontinued

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Cividends received from associates

Acquisition of subsidiaries . net of cash acquired
Purchase of investments

Purchase of property, plant and eguipment

Expenditure onintangible assets

Proceeds fram disposal of property. plant and equipment
Net proceeds from disposal of investments and subsidiary undertakings
Net cash flows from investing activities

Net cash flows from investing activities - continuing

Net cash flows from vesting activities - disconitmued

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayments of loans and borrowings

Payment of debt issue costs

Repayments of lease liabiiities

Proceeds from lease liabilities

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net cash flows from financing activities - continuing
Net cash flows from financing activities - discontinued

Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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Note

14
10

11

25
10

12

13
A
10
11

25

22

31 March 2020

31 March 2019’

£'000 £000
(200.651) (20.718)
(2.292) (3.114)
23,922 11.543
36926 25,058
85627 -
10106 32
17 366 —
18,042 63.000
(1.219) {1.281)
(1.925) (1.844)
851 (962)
(4,983) ~
1,400 (5.874)
219.100 25419
23,285 4453
236 555 95,714
(792) (85)
(325) (4.734)
(32.600) (6,338)
(1,485) 271
201,353 B7.268
(15.109) (5.129)
{16,695) (9.093)
169 549 73.046
219748 80.2G1
(50.199) 12.845
45 28
1,053 969
4,269 (355 938)
(213) (428.057)
(63.477) (18.702)
(14.854) (7.834)
6003 —
37,087 11,474
(30107) (797,B60)
(67.174) (788,218)
37.067 (9.642)
100,000 1.138.000
(131,315) (373.392)
(1.982) (5.298)
{(124.933) -
16,400 -
(2,155) (3.428)
(143 985) 755,882
{143 985} 757.481
- (1,599)
(4,543) 31.068
88,271 57,203
83,728 88.271




Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

'These numbers have been restated, refer to note 1 for explanation

The movements in Group liabilities in the year as a result of financing activities are set out within the below
reconciliation:

Total borrowings Lease liabilities Total Liabiltties from
financing activites
£000 £'000 £'000
Year ended 31 March 2019 1616483 - 1616,483
Lease ltability balance at transition - 230,571 230,571
Cash flows (35.497) (124 933) (160,430}
Accrued Interest 95,027 26 958 121,985
Debtissuance costs (477) - (477)
Changes in fair value (120.708) - (120,708)
Acquisitions - 182,930 182,930
Additions . 117,427 117,427
Foreign exchange - 2,035 2,035
Other movements - {6.775) (6,775)
Year ended 31 March 2020 1.554 828 428,213 1,983,041

The lease liability an leases previously classified as finance leases under |IAS 17 and previously presented within
trade payables of £55m is now presented in the line lease liabilities. There has been no change in the liability
recognised.

The notes on pages 34 to 81 form part of these financial statements.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited \

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 !
1. Accounting policies
a) Reporting entity

Global Media & Entertainment Limited {the "Company”) is an incorporated company limited by shares and
domiciled in the United Kingdom_ Its registered address is 30 Leicester Square, Londan, WC2H 7LA.

These consclidated financial statements are for the Globat Media & Entertainment Limited group (the “Group”)
and they comprise the Company and its subsidiaries which are listed in full in note 3 of the Company financial
statements.

The Group's principal activities during the year was the operation of commercial radio stations in the United
Kingdom and out-of-home advertising in the United Kingdom and Europe

The Group financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on & November 2020.
b} Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (*IFRS") and the Companies Act 2006.

¢} Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are presented in pound sterling (£), which is the Group and the Company’s functional
and presentational currency All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise
indicated.

d} Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a histerical cost basis, except for borrowings, pension assets,
investments and put-options which are measured at fair vaiue. The accounting policies set out below have been
applied consistently to the Group to all periods presented in these financial statements, except in the case of new
accounting standards adopted in the year, detailed below.

Comparative information

The comparative information in the income statement and associated notes has been restated for the impact of
the Festivals discontinued operations. In line with the requirements of the /FRS 5 Non-current assels held for sale
and discontinued operations, the statement of financial position has not been restated.

The comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2019 has also been restated for the finalisation of
acquisition accounting for Primesight and Outdoor Plus, in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations. The
impact of this restatement is to increase goodwill £1.2m and reduce intangible assets £1.2m. Further explanation
is set within note 24

Deferred tax assets have been restated by £9.0m at 31 March 2018 in relation to accounting for business
combinations. Further explanation is set within note 19.

e) Basis of consolidation

The Group financial staternents comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company, using
consistent accounting policies.

Subsidianies

A subsidiary is an entity controiled, either directly or indirectly, by the Company. An investor controls an investee
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and can affect those
returns through its power over the investee.

The results of a subsidiary acquired during the period are included in the Group's results from the effective date
on which control is transferred to the Group. All intercompany balances and transactions, including unrealised
profits arising from intra-Group transactions, have been eliminated in full.

Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the
date of transition.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)
f) Interests in equity-accounted investments
The Group's interests in equity-accounted investments comprise interests in assaociates and joint ventures.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the
financiai and operating policies. A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has jcint cantrol, whereby
the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its
liabilities.

Interests in assaciates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised
at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to ‘nitiai recognition, the consolidated financial statements
include the Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of equity-accounted investments,
untit the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.

g} Call and put options
Valuation of call and put options

When the Group enters in to call or put options to purchase equity, the fair value of the option is recorded on the
statement of financial position. Any subsequent movement in the fair vaiue of the option is taken to profit and
loss.

Puf option reserve

The put option reserve is the estimated cost of settling the Group's put options for non-controlling interest
shareholdings. :

The value of options at 31 March 2020 is £nil. During the period £15.0m of the reserve was disposed of due to
the Festivals disposal as disclosed in note 25. The disposal of these options has been accounted for within the
loss on disposal for the year.

The option previously held over Audic HQ was exercised in August 2019 resulting in the fair value of this option
being £nil which was subsequently reflected in both the option reserve and liability. £0.8m in fair value
movements were recognised within the profit and loss for the year.

h) New accounting standards and interpretations not yet effective -

New accounting standards

The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (*IASB") became effective during the year ended 31 March 2020. The accounting
policies adopted in the presentation of these financial statements reflect the adoption of the following new
standards, amendments to standards and interpretations as of 1 April 2019. The adoption of these standards
aside from iFRS 16 Leases has not impacted the Group's earnings, however has required certain
reclassifications in the Group Statement of Financial Position and introduced additional disclosure requirements:

IFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to IFRS 9. Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2015-2017 cycle

IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtaifment or Settfernent

IFRS 16 Leases

The Group adopted IFRS 16 on 1 April 2019 using the maodified retrospective approach; see below for the impact
of the new standard. IFRS 16 Leases replaced the existing leasing standard, IAS 17 Leases. It treats all leases in
a consistent way, eliminating the distinction between operating and finance leases, and requires lessees to
recognise all leases on the balance sheet, with some practical expedients. The most significant effect of the new
requirements is in the recognition of lease assets (right of use assets) and lease liabilities for leases previously
categorised as operating leases. The new standard aiso changes the nature of expenses related to those leases,
replacing the straight line operating lease expense with a depreciation charge for the right of use lease asset
(included within operating costs) and an interest expense on the lease liability (included within finance costs).

35



1. Accounting policies (continued)

Impact of the new definition of a lease

There are several practical expedients and exemptions available under IFRS 16, The Group is using the practical
expedient where, at the adoption date, right of use lease assets are set to equal the lease liabilities {(adjusted for
accruals and prepayments) and there is no restatement of the comparative pericd. The major classes of leases
impacted by the new standard are property leases and advertising structures. The change in definition of a lease
mainly relates to the concept of control. {FRS 16 determines whether a contract contains a lease based

on whether the customer has the right to contro! the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. This is in contrast to the focus on “risks and rewards” in IAS 17. The group has eilected to rely on
its assessment of whether leases are onerous applying |IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Centingent
Assets immediately before the date of initial applicaticn. The group has adjusted the right-of-use asset at the date
of initiai application by the amount of any provision for onerous leases recognised in the statement of financial
position immediately before the date of initial application.

Impact on lessee accounting

On 1 April 2019, the Group adopted the new accounting standard, IFRS 16 Leases. IFRS 16 changes how the
Group accounts for leases previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17, which were not previously
presented on the balance sheet

There are several practical expedients and exemptions available under IFRS 16, The Group has elected to apply
the modified retrospective method of implementation where there is no restatement of the comparative period
and the using the practical expedient where, at the adoption date, right cf use lease assets are set to equal the
lease liability (adjustaed for accruals and prepayments). The Group has excluded leases of low value assets and
short-term leases, with a duration of less than 12 months from the application of [FRS 16, with payments for
these leases continuing o be expensed directly to the Income Statement as operating leases.

Impact on lessee accounting

For leases assessed as IFRS 16 applicable, the Group:

«  Recognises right of use assets and lease liabilities in the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position,
initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments; and

» Recognises depreciation of right of use assets and interest on lease liabilities in profit or loss

Leased assets which are under construction are capitalised in Properiy plant and equipment and once fully
constructed these are transferred to right of use assets and recognised under IFRS 16. Any cash payments
made to third party suppliers in constructing these assets are shown under cash outflow from investing activities.

Lease incentives are recognised as part of the measurement of the right of use assets and lease liabilities
whereas under IAS 17 they resulted in the recognition of a lease incentive, amortised as a reduction of rental
expenses generally on a straight-line basis.

Under IFRS 16 the right of use assets will be tested for impairment in accordance with /AS 36 Impairment of
Assefs. This repiaced the previous requirement to recognise a provision for onerous leases. An impairment
assessment of the right-of-use assets was performed on transition at 1 April 2019 with no impact identified. The
major classes of leases impacted by the new standard are property, motor vehicles and franchise contract
leases.

At 1 April 2019 transition date adoption of IFRS 16 resulted in the Group recognising right-of use assets of
£228.5m and lease liabilities of £230.6m. There is a reduction of £1.9m for prepaid rental amounts now nefted
against the right-of-use assets and a reduction of £4 1m to liabilities for property provisions and deferred rent-free
amounts netted against the right of use asset.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates (IBR) used at the transition date to discount lease liabilities
were within the range of 6.16% and 6.80%_ A single IBR has been applied to a portfclio of leases when these
have shared similar characteristics including tocation, during and nature of the leases, including whether a group
guarantee is provided. The approach to use an IBR to discount lease has been followed since the transition date
as the interest rate implicit in individual leases cannot be readily determined. On transition the Group elected to
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1. Accounting policies {continued)

apply the practical expedient to rely on the reviews performed at 31 March 2019 to consider any onerous
property contracts.

IFRS 16 defines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease together with the options to extend or
terminate a lease, if the lessee were reasonably certain to exercise that option. Where a iease inciudes the option
for the Group to extend the lease term, the Group makes a judgement as to whether it is reasonably certain that
the option will be taken, and an assumed expiry date is determined. Where there are extension options on
specific leases and the assumed expiry date is determined to have changed, the lease term is reassessed. This
reassessment of the remaining life of the lease could result in a recalcutation of the iease liability and the nght of
use asset and potentially result in a material adjustment o the associated balances of depreciation and finance
lease interest.

The adoption of the new standard in the year has had an impact on the income statement due to a depreciation
charge of £96.6m relating to the right of use assets associated with IFRS 16 and an interest cost relating to the
IFRS 16 lease liabilities of £27.0m. At 31 March 2020 the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position included
the following IFRS 16 amounts; a net book value of the IFRS 186 right-of-use asset of £392.3m and lease
liabilities of £428.2m.

The following table reconciles the opening balance for the lease liabilities as at 1 Aprit 2019 based upon the
operating lease obligations as at 31 March 2018:

£'000
Operating 'ease commitments as at 31 March 2019 389,192
Shert-term leases and leases of low-value assets {16,686)
Effect of discounting the above amounts (141,935)
Lease habilities recognised at * Aprit 2019 230,571

Standards effective in future periods

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published that are
relevant to the Company’s activities and are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginning after 1
January 2019 or later and which the Company has decided not to adopt early.

Effective for perfods starting on or after 1T January 2020

+ Definition of a Business — Amendments to IFRS 3

+  Definition of Material — Amendments to 1AS 1 and IAS 8

+« The Conceptual Framework for Financiai Reporting

. IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

+ IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture - Amendments

The Directors considered the impact on the Group’s financial information and have considered only IFRS 16 to
have a material effect immediately upon adoption on 1 April 2019,

i) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in this note, the Directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
clear from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histarical experience and
other relevant factors. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisicns to accounting estimates

are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)
Critical judgements

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt with separately
below), that the Diractors have made in the process of applying the Greup’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant impact on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

IFRS 16 — Incremental Borrowing Rate

IFRS 18 requires certain judgements and estimates lo be made. The most significant of these relate to the
discount rates used and the term of the lease life. Discount rates are calculated on a lease by lease basis. The
rate used is a portfolio rate, based on estimates of incremental borrowing costs. The portfolio of rates depends on
the territory of the relevant lease, hence the currency used, and the weighted average lease term. As a result,
reflecting the breadth of the Group's acquired lease portfolio in the year, the transition approach adopted has
required a level of judgement in selecting the most appropriate discount rate for those leases acquired. As at
transition, an increase of 1-2% in IBR would decrease Jease liabilities by £11 6m to £21.3m and a decrease of 1-
2% in iIBR would increase lease liabiiities by £21,3m to £35.1m.

Adjusted EBITDA

The identification of adjusting items is a judgement in terms of which costs or credits are not associated with the
underlying trading of the business or otherwise impact the comparability of the Group's results year on year.
Adjusted EBITDA comprises earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and is stated before any
charges or credits relating to non-recurring items including restructuring. impairment and integration costs such
as launch costs including rebranding, redundancy costs and acquisition-related costs. This is consistent with prior
year.

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-statutory reporting measure and, as such, is not presented in the primary financial
statements of the Group, however it is an important element of the Group’s internal reporting and impacts certain
performance-related remuneration costs. as reported in the financial statements. Refer to page B2 for further
details.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intang:bles including Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment and intangibles excluding goodwill are reviewed for impairment if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value amount may not be recoverable. Goodwil is reviewed
for impairment on an annual basis at the reporting date. When an impairment assessment is conducted the
recoverable amount is determined as the higher of fair value less costs to sell or value in use of the assets. The
value in use method requires the Group to determine appropriate assumptions (which are sources of estimation
uncertainty) in relation to the cash flow projections over a five-year period, the long-term growth rate has been
applied beyond the five-year period.

in light of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, the Group's cash flow projections over the five year period have been
revised and inciude a Covid-19 overlay in year 1 {the Covid-18 scenario), focusing on the downturn in advertising
spend on our Outdoor advertising estate during an estimated lock down period and the internaily controllable
mitigating actions the Group is taking to protect the business. The assumption that cash flows continue into
perpetuity is a source of significant estimation uncertainty. A future change to the assumption of trading into
perpetuity for any Cash-Generating Unit (CGU) would result in a reassessment of useful economic lives and
residual value and could give rise to a significant impairment of property, plant and equipment, particularly where
the carrying value exceeds fair value less costs to sell. Refer to note 10 for further details.
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1. Accounting policies {(continued)

Determination of discount rate — impacf on Group borrowings

The Group uses a discount rate based on unobservable inputs {level 3) to value its borrowings. The valuation of
the borrowings is sensitive to the discount rate used at the loans’ inception.

Latest modification Discount rate
Sharehalder loan notes {post year end 31/3/19) 31 December 2019 10.3%
Shareholder loan notes (pre year end 31/3/139) 31 December 2019 9.5%
l.oan from parent entity 31 December 20132 9.5%

An increase and decrease in the discount rate by 1% would resutt in the following movements in the valuation of
the Group's borrowings:
increase 1% Decrease 1%
Increasel/(decrease) in borrowing {£'000)
Shareholder loan notes ) {41,720) 44,162
Loan from parent entity (6,171) 5.563

Determinalion of discount rate — impact on impairment assessments

The Group uses its weighted average cost of capital to discount expected future cash flows across its operating
segments. The value in use of each CGU, and therefore the headroom above carrying value, is sensitive to
changes in this discount rate. Management has detailed the sensitivities performed, refer to note 10 for the
detaited impact that a change in assumptions would have on the impairment charge for the Cutdoor CGU. There
is significant headroom in the Radio division and the value in use is not materially sensitive to changes in the
discount rate applied to future cash flows.

i} Going concern

The Directors consider it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. The
Directors’ forecasts show sufficient cash will be generated from the Group’s operations to be able to repay the
bank loan and other obligations as they fall due together with cash available and the utilised borrowing facilities
available.

Given the global potitical and economic unceriainty resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic, we have seen
significant volatility and business disruption reducing our expected performance in 2020/21. We have already felt
the impact of the government’s guidelines on lockdown, with our Outdoor advertising estate being heavily
impacted. We have seen a decline in customers advertising spend on both our Outdoor and Radic advertising
mediums.

The Covid-19 scenario assumes a significant decline in revenue for the remainder of 2020/21. In addition, stress
testing has also been applied to the model, which represents a significant decline in advertising revenue
compared to the Covid-19 scenario. Such a scenario, and the sequence of events which could lead to it is
considered to be remote.

The Covid-19 scenario reflects the actions already taken by management, including: — Cost-saving initiatives,
such as reducing marketing spend, freezing pay and recruitment, and technolegy and operating expenditure cut,
including a decrease in headcount due to an announced group restructure.
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1. Accounting policies {continued)

The Group benefited from the government's job retention scheme to help meet the cost of furloughed roles
throughout the group which shoutd generate savings up to 31 August 2020. In addition, the following further
steps have also been taken:

In April a Formal agreement was reached with the lending syndicate of banks providing external borrowing
facilities, totailing £410m as at 31 March 2020, to remove or substantialiy relax the covenant conditions for

the three covenants we are reguired to meet except for the retention of a minimum cash balance reguirement for
a twelve month peried from March 2020. In October 2020 further agreement was reached with the lending
syndicate of banks in relation to requirements for our June and September 2021 covenant tests in regards to
signing off on a higher allowance for our leverage cover and the reinstatement of our interest cover covenant.

The agreement with the barks combined with the other measures taken means that, even under the Covid-19
scenario, the business would continue to have significant liquidity headroom on its existing facilities and against
the revolving credit facility financial covenant.

As at 31 March 2020 the financiai covenant was met. As a result, the Directors believe that the Group is well
placed to manage its financing and other significant risks satisfactorily and that the Group will be able to operate
within the level of its facilities for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Directors consider it appropriate for
the Group to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.

k} Segment reporiing

A segment is a component of the Group ihat engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses. including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other
companents All operating segments’ operating resuits are reviewed regularly by the Group’s board of Directors
to make decisions about resources to be ailocated to a segment and assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial information is available {(see note 2).

)  Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into pound sterling (£), the Group's functional currency, using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
currency translation gains and losses resuiting from the settlement of such transactions and from the transiation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilites denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the Income Statement. Foreign currency transiation gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the Income Statement within finance income or finance expense. All other
foreign currency translation gains and losses are presented in the Income Statement within direct costs and
administrative expenses.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including fair vaiue adjustments arising on consolidation, are
transiated to the Group's functional currency at foreign currency exchange rates ruling at the reporting date.
Goodwill remains translated at the historic exchange rate.

The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated at an average rate for the period, which
approximates the foreign currency exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Exchange differences
arising from the transiation of foreign operations are reported in other comprehensive income,

m) Investments

Investments are included in the Statement of Financial Position (or Balance Sheet) at cost less amounts written-
off, representing impairment in value. Impairment charges are recorded if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

In 2019 the Group recorded its interest in Exterion Media Group as an investment at fair value as at 31 March
2019, given the restriction on control as a result of the CMA review of the acquisition. During the current year the
CMA process was finalised and as a resuit Exterion Media Group has been fully consclidated in accordance
IFRS 10, leading to the derecognition of this investment. The acquisition of Exterion Media Group has been
treated as a business combination and goodwill recognised in accordance with accounting policy 1p.

n) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost
includes the original purchase price of the assets and costs attributable te bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use.
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1. Accounting policies {continued)

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated at rates calculated to write off the cost less residual value of each
asset over its useful economic life on a straight-line basis over the foliowing periods:

Freehoid property 25 to 50 years

Capitalised leasehold costs Qver the term of the lease
Fixtures, fittings and technical equipment 3to 10 years

Festival assets 310 10 years

Advertising panels 7.5t0 20 years
Transmitters 10 years

Gains and losses on disposals of assets are calculated as the difference between the proceeds received and the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal and are recognised in profit or loss.

Constructicn in progress (CIP} includes components purchased for incorporating into advertising sites and other
asseis, which are recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable value of the separate items of stock or groups
of similar items. Assets in the course of contribution are recorded at cost to date and represents the amount of
other expenditure on advertising isites which are noy yet installed or ready for service.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Impairment reviews of property, plant and equipment are undertaken whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate their carrying value may not be recoverable. If the fair value of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. Where an impairment
loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount is increased to the revised estimate, but restricted so that the
increased amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
toss been recognised in prior years. Any impairment losses or reversals are recognised immediately in the
income statement. ’

o) Intangible assets and goodwill

Goodwill

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
and is not amortised but is tested annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carry value may be impaired.

Research and software development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software development expenditure that are directly attributable to the
design and testing of the identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group are recognised as
intangible assets when the following criteria is met:

» The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use,
= s intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or seli the asset;

= How the asset will generate future economic benefits;

» The availability of resources to complete the asset; and

» The ability to measure the reliability of the expenditure during development to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any
accumulated ameortisation and accumuiated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when
development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected future
benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful live of
intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite life and goodwill are
systematically tested for impairment at each balance sheet date. Other intangible assets are amortised from the
date they are availabie to use. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Software 1to 7 years
Franchise rights 2to 10 years
Other 4 to 8 years
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Impaimment of infangible assets {excluding goodwill}

Impairment reviews are undertaken whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate their carrying vaiue
may not be recoverable. If the fair value of an intangible asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount is increased to the revised estimate, but restricted so that the increased amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that weuld have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Any impairment losses or reversals are recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

p) Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The costs of an acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at the acquisition date fair value and the amount of
any nan-contralling interest in the acquiree Acquisiticn costs incurred are expensed and included in
administrative expenses

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value will be recognised either within the income Statement or in other
comprehensive iIncome.

Goodwill on acquisition is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over
the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. |dentifiable
intangible assets, meeting either the contractual-tegal or separability criterion are recognised separately from
goodwill. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill in respect of an acquired subsidiary is recognised as an intangible asset. Goodwiil in respect of an
acquired asscciate or joint venture is included within investments accounted for using the equity method.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annuaily or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. Please see note 10 in these financial statements.

Where the fair vaiue of the interest acquired in an entity’s assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the
consideration paid, the excess is recognised immediately as a gain in the iIncome Statement.

As at the acquisition date, any goodwill acquired is allocated to each of the cash-generating units expected to
benefit from the combination’s synergies. Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit, to which the goodwill reiates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Where goodwill forms part of a cash generating
unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the cperation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the
operation.

Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash generating unit retained.

q} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and money market deposits. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the Statement of Cash Flows.
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1. Accounting policies (continued}
r) Share capital
Crdinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Share premium

The share premium account represents the amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value, less
any costs directly attributabie to the issue of new shares.

Reserves

The retained deficit represents the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the Income Statement and
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary share capital are recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements in the period
in which they are declared. In the case of interim dividends, these are considered to be declared when they are
paid and in the case of final dividends these are declared when authorised by the shareholders.

s} Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subseguently measured at
amortised cost. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less,
otherwise they are presented as non-current liabilities.

t) Borrowings

Borrowings are recagnised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the Income Statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest methaod.

Shareholder loan notes, as disclosed in note 16 of these financial statements, are subsequently measured at fair
vaiue, with any difference recognised in the Income Statement.

The parent company interest free loan was designated at fair value due to the presence of embedded derivatives
at infial recognition

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or alt of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Transaction costs relating to the borrowings are included in the carrying amount of the liability and are amortised
over the lives of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

u} Finance income and expense
Finance income comprises interest received on cash balances.

Finance expense comprises interest payable on borrowings, interest on lease liabilities, amortisation and write off
of debt issuance costs and the unwinding of the discount on non-current provisions.

Interest is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest rate. Interest payable on
borrowings includes a charge in respect of attributable transaction costs, which are recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

v) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is initially recognised at fair value on the Statement of Financial Position (or Balance
Sheet) when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial instrument is
derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows expire or substantively ali risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred.

The Group's financial assets are classified in accordance with IFRS 9 and subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value, depending on classification.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost.

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows,; and
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- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principat and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a provision for expected credit losses on financial assets. The amount of expected credit
Iosses is updated at each reporting daie to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial !
instrument.

in assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly, the Group considers both guantitative and
qualitative information that is both reasonable and supportable, inciuding historical experience and forward-
looking information. The Group assumes that the credit nsk on a financiai instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reparting
date

For all financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group and the cash flows the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

Financial liabilities
Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial liabilities are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, or at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is (1) contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination, (it) held for trading or (iii) it is designated as FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss {except for those attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability, which is
instead recorded in other comprehensive income). Amounis recognised in other comprenensive income are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss but are instead transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition of
the financial liability.

Financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost
All other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelied or have expired. The difference between the carrying ameount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

w) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income Statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calcuiated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. it establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Statement of Financial Position. However, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial
Position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liabilities where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the tempaorary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authaority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

X} Employee benefits

Short ferm employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: {a) when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of
1AS 37.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets (“IAS 37") and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits faliing due more than one year afler
the end of the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

Defined confnbution pension scheme

The Group operates employee stakeholder retirement and death benefit schemes. Both employees and
employers are required to make contributions with the employers’ contributions for each employee determined by
the level of contribution made by the employee and the employee’s length of service within the Group or
subsidiary company. The employer’'s contributions are charged to profit and loss in the year in which the
contributions are due.

Defined benefit pension schemes

The Group operates two defined benefit pension schemes which require contributions to be made to separately
administered funds. The cost of providing benefits under the plans are determined using independent actuarial
valuations. These are based on the projected unit credit method and are recognised in accordance with the
advice of a qualified actuary. Past service cosis resulting from enhanced benefits are recognised on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period or immediately if the benefits have vested.

Re-measurement gains and losses, and taxation thereon, are recognised in other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. Re-measurements comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets {(excluding amounts included in net interest) and changes in the amount of any asset
restrictions.

Actuarial gains and losses may result from differences between the actuarial assumptions underlying the plan
liahilities and actual experience during the year or changes in the assumptions used in the valuation of the plan
liabilities.

The aggregate defined benefit liability or asset recognised in the Statement of Financial Position comprises the
present vaiue of the benefit obligation using a discount rate based on appropriate high quality corporate bonds, at
the reporting date, minus any past service costs not yet recognised, minus the fair value of the plan assets, if
any, at the reporting date. Where the plans are in surplus, the asset recognised is limited to the amount which the
Group expects to recover by way of refunds or reduction in future contributions.
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y) Share-based payments

The Group has a long-term incentive share scheme under which it makes equity-seitled share-based paymenis
to eligible employees. The cost of equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of
grant and recognised as an expense over the vesting period, which ends on the date on which the employees
become fully entitled to the reward.

Fair value is estimated using appropriate models for the awards under consideration. In valuing equity settled
transactions, no account is taken of any vesting conditions, other than the performance conditions linked to the
price of the shares of the Company {market conditions). Any other conditions which are required to be met in
order for an employee to become fully entitled to an award are considered to be non-vesting conditions. These
are alsg considered in determining the grant date fair value.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settied transactions where i
vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether '
or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that ali other performance and/or service

conditions are satisfied. I

At each reporting date before vesting, the cumulative expense is calculated, representing the extent to which the

vesting period has expired and management's best estimate of the number of the achievement or otherwise of

non-market vesting conditions and of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest or, in the case of '
an instrument subject to a market condition, be treated as vesting. The movement in cumuiative expense since

the previous reporting date is recognised in the Income Statement. with a corresponding entry in equity.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified or a new award is designated as replacing a cancelled
or settied award, the cost based on the original award terms continues to be recognised over the original vesting
period. In addition, an expense is recognised over the remainder of the new vesting period for the incremental fair
value of the madification, based on the difference between the fair value of original award and the fair value of
the modified award, both as measured at the date of modification. No reduction is recognised if this difference is
negative.

Where an equity-settied award is cancelled (where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity or
the employee are not met), it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is expensed immediately. Any compensation paid up to the fair value of the award at
the cancellation or settlement date 1s deducted from equity, with any excess vver [an value being treated as an
expense in the Income Statement.

z) Provisions
Provisions for restructuning costs, tegal claims and other future costs are recognised when:

- the Group has a present iegal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
- it is probable that an outflow of resources will be requiired to settle the obligation; and
- the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are measured at the present value of the
costs expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.

Restructuring provisions are recognised only when the Group has developed a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected. The measurement of-such a provision includes
only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, not those assocciated with the ongoing activities of the
entity.

aa) Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition is based on the satisfaction of performance obligations, and an assessment of when control
is transferred to the customer. The transaction price is allocated to these identified performance obligations,
including an estimate of any variable consideration, and stated net of any sales taxes, agency commissions and
trade discounts.

Customer coniracts vary across the Group and contain a variety of performance obligations. Under IFRS 15, the
Group must evaluate whether the goods or services are transferred over time or at a point in time for each
performance ohiigation.
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A summary of how the key classes of revenue are recognised is provided below:

Radio advertising Paint in time, at date of broadcast

Sponsorship Qver the term of the contract

Internet revenue Over the term of the contract

Transmission fees Over the term of the contract

Production of adverts Point in time, on date of release to clients
Enterprise revenue Paint in time, on agreed settiement with all parties
Festival ticket revenue Point in time, on the day of the festival

Festival non-ticket sales. Point in time, at the point of sale

Out-of-home media revenue Qver the term of the contract

Qut-of-home production revenue Paint in time, when provided for use

For goods and services that are transferred over time, revenue is recognised based on the number of days that
have transpired at the reporting date.

Customer contracts are generaily less than one year in duration, as are all standard payment terms, and
therefore no significant financing components exist within the Group's operations.

The transaction price is determined by the agreed terms of the contract. In some instances, contracts wili
comprise an element of variable consideration, often in the form of volume-based rebates. In these instances, the
total transaction price of the contract is reduced by the estimated variable consideration. The standard requires
the entity to estimate the amount of variable consideration and based on this the Group accrues the value of
rebates on a monthly basis based on its expectation of year-end sales volumes. Under {ERS 15 the Group
applies the ‘most likely amount method’ for estimating the amount of variable consideration.

The Group applies the practical expedient to expense all incremental costs in obtaining new contracts when
incurred on the condition that the contract is less than one year in duration.
Revenue on barter transactions is recognised only when the services being exchanged are of a similar nature.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods and services transferred to the customer. If
the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Confract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration {or an amount of consideration due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made,
or the payment is due {(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

bb} Fair value measurement

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Set out below is an analysis of the valuation method of the
Group's financial instruments:

The different levels in the fair value hierarchy have been defined as follows:

* Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

» Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable, for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

{uncbservable inputs).
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1.  Accounting policies (continued)
The Group has no assets or liabilities where fair values have been determined for measurement purposes.
Borrowings (level 3)

Borrowings, as disciosed in note 16 and note 17, are calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows based on the term and maturity of the foan and using estimated market interest rate available to the Group
for similar instruments at the loans’ inception. The Group uses a discount rate based on uncbservable inputs
(level 3) to value its other borrowings (shareholder loan notes, connected party loan and loan from parent entity)
The valuation of the borrowings is sensitive to the discount rate used at the loans’ inception. The discount rate is
reassessed when new off-market loans are introduced, or existing other borrowings are significantly maodified.

cc)  Financial guarantee contracts

Where the Group enters into financial guaraniee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies
within the Group, the Group considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. in
this respect. the Group treats the guarantee contract as a contingent hability until as such time as it becomes
probable that the Group will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.
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2. Operating segments

The Group’s chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors
review the Group's internal reporting monthiy in order to assess performance and allocate resources.

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports used by the Board. The Board mainty

assesses performance based on adjusted EBITDA.

In the current year the Group has two reportable segments in the year being commercial radio broadcasting

(Radio) in the UK and out of home advertising (Outdoor) operating in the UK and Europe. The Music festivals
operaticns were discontinued operations in the year until disposal, refer to note 25 for further details.

Most of the Group's trading is carried out and recognised within the United Kingdom, though the Group also
operates across North America and Europe.

All transactions between segments are completed on an arm's length basis. There was one customer that

provided more than 10% of the Group revenue in the year

Year ended 31 March 2020

Total revenue

Rewenue rarn extenal cusiomars
Dhiract costs

Grass profit

Operatirg expersas,

Adjusted EBITDA

Other 2xpenses

Impairment of intargibie assets
Operatng profit/ (loss)

Metfinarce expense

Share of profit/ {loss) of equity-accounted nvestees net of tax
{ quity

Fiofit ! {'oss) before taxaticn

Year ended 31 March 2019

Totat fevenueg

Reverue from extemal customers
Direct cosis

5ross profit

Operatrg expenses

Adjusted EBMTDA®

(her expenses

Operatrg profit/ (loss)

Netfinance expensa
Share of arofit/ (loss) of aquity-accounted investees net of tax

=rofit / {loss) before taxation

Music Festivais

Continuing discontinued
Radio Qutdoor Group Total operations Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £7000 E'000
388770 456 047 824,317 14215 828 832
158,770 466,047 - 824,817 14,045 838,832
1BE Q2T 1236 G081 1303 833 (72 447 1315 2801
291,843 229141 - 520,984 1,568 522,552
185 922, \78 804) {285 726 1a10y 1267 6364
104,921 150,337 - 256,258 (342) 254,916
132252; 1163 439) g5 70 12187) 1197 8681
- 219 1004 219 100 1218100
72,659 (232,202) - {158,543) {2,509) (162,052)
444832 (B3 52%) - (12042} 25 (1G9 017
1219 1219 1219
118,361 (295.727) - (177,366} (2,484) [179,85%
Music Festivals
Continuing discontinued
Radio Qutdoor Group Total operations Total
£'080 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'060
358 403 52.081 410,484 59.581 AT D45
358,402 52,081 - 410,484 69,561 480,045
69 463) (38072) - {105 535} 1807210 (166.258)
288,940 16,609 - 304,949 8,840 31 3,78_9_
(185281} 6.233) - (191 404, (5087} (156 561)
103,679 9,776 113,458 3,753 117,208
(27 966) (10769 125.419; 164 154 0712y (74 866,
75,713 (993) {25,419) 49,301 (6,959) 42,342
(53563) {G 3281 82.991) 19) 153 600)
1108 - 1.108 173 1.261
23,158 {10,321) (25,419) {12,582} (6,795) {19,377)

*The reconciliation and definition of Adjusted EBITDA is disclosed on page 82 of the accounts.
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3. Operating (loss)/profit

Operating (loss)/profit is stated after charging/(crediting):

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right of use assets
Impairment

Loss ondisposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of intangibles
Operating lease rentals

- land and buildings

- motor vehicles and cther leases

Auditor's remuneration for audit and non-audit services during the year was:

Fees payable to the Group's auditer and its associates for the audit of the
Group's annual financial statements

Fees payable to the Group's auditor and its associates in respect of
Other services pursuant to legislation

Taxation compliance services

Comorate finance services

Pension services

Share option plan services

Year ended 31
March 2020

£000

36,926
23,922
95,627
219,100

10,038
60,182

428
1,493

Year ended 31
March 2020
£'000

816

13
327
130

5
124

Year ended 31
March 2019

£000

25068
11.543

32

42610
1.331

Year ended 31
March 2019

£'000

377

13
459
2.710

53

In the prior period as the Group's interest in Exterion Media Group was recognised as an investment as at 31
March 2019 on the basis that Exterion was under a hold-separate as instructed by the CMA, audit and non-audit
fees payable to the Group’s auditor were not included within the prior period comparative

4. Revenue from contracts with customers

a) Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group'’s revenue from contracts with customers.

Radio
Cutdoor

Revenue from continuing operations
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Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2019

£000 £000
358,770 358.403
466,047 52.081

824,817

410,484



4. Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Geographic split of revenue recognition for continuing operations:

Europe
North America
United Kingdom

Timing of revenue recognition for continuing operations:

Goods and services transferred at a point in time
Goods and services transferred over time

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2018
£000 £000
159,41 -
11,726 9.322
653,680 401.162
824,817 410,484

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2019
£000 £000
389,296 349,164
435,521 61,320
824,817 410,484

Goods and services transferred over time includes commission revenue, sponsorships, transmission fees and
outdoor media revenue. All other revenue for the group relates to goods and services that are transferred at a

point in time.

b) Contract balances

Contract assets

Contract liabiiities

Year ended 31

March 2020
£000

14,960
19,552

Year ended 31
March 2019

£000

11,267
23871

The timing of invoicing, cash collection and revenue recognition results in trade receivables, contracts assets and
contract liabilities in the Group's statement of financial position. Contract assets and liabilities are included in
trade receivables and trade payabies balances within the Statement of Financial Position.

As at the reporting date, any goods or services that have been transferred to customers for which consideration
has not yet been received (or invoiced for) are recognised as a contract asset. Any consideration that has been
received (or invoiced for) in relation to goods or services that have not been transferred to the customer is

recognised as a contract liability.

Contract asset balances, where applicable, are stated net of provisions for impairment. All contract balances
relate to performance cbligations expected to be settled within a year and are classified as current in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Revenue recognised in the current period that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the
period was £23.7m. There was no revenue recognised in the period from performance obligations satisfied (or

partially satisfied) in previous periods.

The Group applies the practical expedient provided by the standard not to disclose information about unsatisfied
performance obligations on the basis that all such performance obligations are part of contracts that have an

expected duration of less than one year.
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5. Empioyees

The average number of people employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year, anaiysed by
category was as follows:

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2019

Sales and marketing 1,342 719
Programming 385 410
Administration 713 354
2,440 1,483

All members of staff are contractually empioyed by subsidiary companies within the Group and not under direct
employment by Glaobal Media & Entertainment Limited (the Coempany).

The aggregate remuneration costs of these employees were as follows:

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 20290 March 2019
£'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 136,489 88.045
Social security costs 20,695 9947
Net expense related to defined benefit pension schemes {530) 2,368
Contributons to defined contribution pension schemes 3,388 2,657
160,042 103,017
6. Directors

The remuneration costs of the Group's Directors were:
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2020 March 2019
£'000 £'000
Remuneration 5,569 7.345

5,569 7.345

Total remuneration includes £13k of coniributions to the defined contribution schemes (2019 £20k).

The remuneration of the highest paid Director was:

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2019

£'000 £:000

Aggregate emaluments 2,640 2,522
2,640 2,522

The amounts disclosed above represent the remuneration for the gualifying services of the Directors of the
Group.

IAS 24 Related pariy transactions ("|AS 24" requires the Group and Company to disclose all transactions and
outstanding balances with the Group and Compay's key management personnel. IAS 24 defines key
management personnel as those persons having autherity and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any Director (whether executive or otherwise)
of that entity.
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6. Directors {continued}

The key management personnel who are responsible for planning, directing and controiling the activities of the

Group and the Company are the Group’s Directors.

During the prior year, a number of Directors were granted loans in relation to an eguity-settied share-based
payment arrangement. The loans are due for repayment an the settlement of the scheme. The loan balances

outstanding are:

Loans to directors i relation to cash-settied share based

payment arrangement

No interest has been charged on the loans made to directors (2G19: £nil).

7. Finance income

Bank interest receivable
Interest on pension scheme assets
Movement in fair vaiue on related party loan borrowings

8. Finance expense

Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts
Interest payable on other loans

Amortisation of debt issue costs
nterest on lease liabilities

Foreign exchange movements

interest on pension scheme fiabilties

53

Year ended 31
March 2020

£'000

Year ended 31

Year ended 31
March 2019

£'000

142

Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2019
£'000 £000

45 22

1,106 1.124
120,708 17,560
121,859 18,696

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2018
£'000 £'000
10,881 5152
94,999 74 107
1,503 845
26,958 -
5,050 -
1,510 1,583
140,901 81687




9. Income tax charge

(a) Analysis of tax charge in the year

Current tax expense
UK corparation tax o the loss for the year

Adiustments in respect of prior years

Total current tax expense

Deferred tax charge / (credit)
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences
Adjustments in respect of prior years

Total deferred tax charge / (credit)
Income tax charge

(b} Factors affecting the tax charge in the year

Loss before tax

Lioss before tax multplied by the standard rate of corporation tax of 189% (2019
18%:)

Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Interest expense not deductible for tax purposes
Recognition of deferred tax on temparary differences
Share of profit of equity accounted investments
Spectal factors affecting joint-ventures and associates
UK Dividend income from associates

Effects of changes In tax rates

Adjustments i respect of prior years

Cverseas rates vs UK rates

Income tax charge

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2019’
£'000 £'000
7,750 11,569
(2,043) 94
5,707 11,663
17,097 (7 .256)
481 46
17,578 (7210}
23,285 4453

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2019’
£000 £000
(177,366) (19 377)
(33,700) (3.682)
46,641 6195

. 533

14,831 1.011
(295) 592
(32) (72)
{200) 77
(3137) 314
(1,562) 139
739 140
23,285 4453

! The numbers presented within this note for the year ended 31 March 2019 have been restated in relation to
recognising a deferred tax asset in respect of interest restricted under the Corporate Interest Restriction legislation
and carried forward but only on the basis and to the extent that it offsets against deferred tax liabilities created in
the accounting for business combinations. The impact of this adjustment is £95m on profit for the year and deferred

tax assets held on the statement of financial position.

Material items within ‘expenses not deductibe for tax purposes’ relate to tax of £37.8m on the impairment of

intangible assets as disclosed within note 10.

See below a reconciliation of the tax change within this note to that presented within the income statement.
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9. Income tax charge {(continued}

Income tax charge for continuing operations

lncome tax charge for discontinued operations

Total income tax charge

{c} Factors that may affect future tax charge

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2018"
£000 £'000
{23,285) (8.134}

- 3.681
(232,285) {4.453)

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 20% to 19% with effect from 1 April 2017
Accordingly, the effective rate of 19% has been used in the computation of current tax.

The tax rates used to measure the deferred tax assets and liabilities recorded in these financial statements are
the tax rates in the pericd in which we expect the deferred tax assets or liabilities to crystallise.

10. Intangible assets

Cost

At 1 Aprit 2019

Acquisttions

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Effects of movements in foreign exchange
At 31 March 2020

Amaortisation and impairment

At 1 Apri 2019

Charge for the year

impawrment

Effects of movements In foreign exchange
Disposals

At 31 March 2020

Net book value
At 31 March 2020

Cost

At 1 April 2018
Acquisitons

Additions

Disposals

Dnsposal of subsidianes
Al 31 March 2018

Amortisation and impairment
Al 1 April 2018

Charge for the year

Disposals

DCisposal of subsichanes
imparrment

At 31 March 2018

Net book value
AL 1 Apnl 2018

At 31 March 2019

Franchise Brands and
Software costs rights Other Licenses trademarks Goodwill Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
31 328 184.235 - 22 083 85641 798 535 1,121,803
2576 218 554 581 - 180,320 408 851
14 521 7 - 14.528
(13,761) (18.702) (2.000; (69 183) (231) (103.877)
3832 - - - - - 3,932
236 6,275 146 - 234 5.891
45,783 390 382 704 20,063 18,458 978,868 1,452,228
17 328 4 481 - 9,437 43.504 324 940 399,687
11,124 22,092 288 2270 1,192 - 36,926
- 20.000 - 199,100 219,100
170 7 135 - - - 312
(13,764} (8971} - (800) (28 240) - (43,695)
14,855 45,649 423 10,907 16,456 524,049 512,330
30,928 344,713 281 9,166 2 464,818 839,898
Franchise Brands and
Software costs rights Other Licenses trademarks Goodwili Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
31 641 - 20.861 75 860 645 809 774171
- 184,235 - 1179 9.773 152 726 347,913
7,603 - 23 =] - 7.634
(7.915) - - - - - (7.915)
31,329 184,235 - 22,063 85 641 798,535 1,121,803
18,882 - - 6.266 16.000 315877 357.125
8 356 4481 - 3171 11.048 - 25058
17.915) - - - - - {7.915)
- - - - 16,458 8 963 25,419
17.325 4,481 - 9437 43,504 324,840 399,687
12,758 14,595 59,860 329.832 417,046
14,004 179,754 - 12,626 42.137 473,595 722,115
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10. Intangible assets {continued)

All acquisitions of intangible assets during the year were in relation to the new Qutdoor division (see Business
Combinations note 24. Pricr year balances are restated for the finalisation of the acquisition accounting of
Primesignt and Outdoor Plus, in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations. See basis of preparation within
note 1 for additional information.

During the year, the Group capitaiised £14.5m (2019 £6.9m) of sofiware development costs.
Goodwill

Impairment review

The Group completes an impairment review of goodwill annually. I1n accordance with |AS 36 - impairment of
assets {"IAS 367). The Group tests for impairment of goodwill at the operating segment level (see note 2 for
operating segments) representing an aggregation of Cash Generating Units ("CGU’s)” and reflects the level at
which goodwill is monitored in the business.

The Group estimates value in use by projecting pre-tax cash flows for the next five years, together with a terminal
value using a long-term growth rate, and compares this to the fair value less costs to sell in the assessment of
the recoverable amount. The key assumptions underpinning the recoverable amounts of the CGU’s tested for
impairment are forecast revenue and EBITDA.

The cash flows used for the impairment testing for each CGU are based on the Group's latest budget and
forecast cash flows, covering a four-year period, which have regard 1o historical performance and where they see
the performance of the CGUs given the industry sector in which they operate. The Board-approved Budget and
four-year plan reflect a conservative view of the short-term future performance of the CGU with significant
reductions in forecasted EBITDA in 20/21. In determining the forecasts Management considered the speed of
recovery and the variability in the impact across the countries in which the group operates in the light of what was
known at 31 March 2020. Management have made several key assumptions, specifically on cash flows, pre-tax
discount rates and long term growth rates.

The key assumptions used by management alongside the cash flow forecasts are as follows:

CGU Headroom on CGU Long term growth rate Pre-tax discount rates
£000 (LTGR) (%) (%)
2020 2020 2019 2020 2019
Qutdoor (199,100) 1.7 ‘ - 9.8 -
Radic 816,500 18 3.0 1.0 6.2

The pre-tax discount rates used in the vaiue in use calculations reflect the Group's assessment of the current
market and cther risks specific o the CGUs. Long-term growth rates are applied after the forecast pericd. Long-
term growth rates are based on external reports on long-term GDP growth rates for the main geographic markets
in which each CGU operates. The headroom shown above represents the excess of the recoverable amount over
the carrying value for the Radio CGU and the impairment of £199.1m of Goodwill in the Outdoor CGU.

Management's review of ithe intangible assets and Property plant and equipment using the same cashflows used
in their annual goodwill assessment ed to an impairment of £20.0m of United Kingdom intangibie assets.

The Group has undertaken a sensitivity analysis based on changes to key assumptions considered to be
reasonably possible by management. These sensitivities around EBITDA and growth rate have been considered
as to whether they are reasonably likely to either erode headroom or give risk of material adjustment to cartying
values across CGU groups.

The total carrying value of Goodwill at 31 March 2020 post impairment is £454 818 which is allocated to the
CGU's. The allocated Goodwiil for each CGU is £323,129k (Radio) and £131,689k (Cutdoor).
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10. Intangible assets {continued)

Management noted that there were no reasonably possibie changes that would cause an impairment in the Radio
CGU. The sensitivities applied to the Outdoor CGU would represent a further impairment to Goodwill within the
CGU if the key assumptions changed.

» 0.5% increase to pre-tax discount rate would further impair Goodwill by £46 1m
¢+ 1% decrease in LTGR would further impair Goodwill by £65.0m
e 10% decrease to forecasted EBITDA would fusther impair Goodwill by £69 6m

11. Property, plant and equipment

Transmitters,
fixtures and

Land and technical Construction Leasehoid
buildings equipment Festivai assets in progress improvements Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 E'DOO
Cost
At1 Apnd 2018 20.001 82882 2.258 - 245 105 386
Additions 1.321 12,520 - 50.653 122 G4 616
Acquisitions 814 38157 - 38.321 1,406 78 898
Disposails (5589 $18.78M0 (2.258) {1206} (541 (28.474)
Transfers - 13.7556 - 41,051 249 (27047}
Effects of movements i1 foreign exchange 14 5491 - 115 26 5646
At 31 March 2020 16,461 134,025 - 46 832 1,507 198,825
Deapreciation
At1 Apnl 2019 4110 8.707 963 - 245 15.025
Charge for the year 1485 21 986 121 - 330 23922
Acguisitrons - - - - -
Effects of movements In foreign exchange - 4 521 - - 15 4 536
Disposals (3.691) {13.138) {1.084) . 1523} (18 436
Al 31 March 2020 1,804 23.076 - - 67 25,047
Net book valua
At 3t March 2020 14,557 110,94% - 46,832 1,440 173,778
Transmitters,
fixturas and
Land and technicai Construction Leasehold
buildings equipment Festivai assets in progress improvements Total
£'000 £'90Q £'000 £'000 £'900 £'9400

Cost
At 1 Apni 2018 19.309 13.287 1.204 - 245 34,045
Additions 1320 16.330 1.052 - - 18.702
Acquisitions - 56.554 2 - . 56,556
Disposals . (628) 13.289) - - - (3,917}
At 31 March 2019 20,001 82.882 2258 - 245 105,386
Depraciation
At 1 Aprl 2018 3.251 3.879 237 - - 7367
Charge for the year 1.487 : §.085 726 - 245 11543
Disposals {628} (3.257) - - - (3,885)
At 31 March 2018 4110 §.707 . 963 - 245 15,025
Net book value
At 1 Aprit 2018 16.058 9,408 a67 - 245 26,678
At 31 March 2019 15,891 73175 1.295 - - 90,361
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12. Equity accounted investments

tnvestments in Investments in

joint ventures associates Total
£'000 £°000 £000
Cost ’
At 1 April 2018 546 818 1.464
Share of profit of equity accounted investments 790 429 1.219
Dividends received from equity accounted investments (749) (304) (1.053)
Disposed - (304) (304)
At 31 March 2020 687 539 1,326
Investments in Investments in
joint ventures associates Total
Cost
At 1 April 2018 606 546 1.152
Share af profit of equity accounted nvestments 740 541 1.281
Dividends recewed from equity accounted investments (700) (269) (969)
At 31 March 2019 646 818 1.464
The Group's investments in associates are.
g i h ital
Name Country % of ordinary s a.re capita
ownership
EG Digital Limited UK 490
The Digitai Radic Group (London) Limited UK 48 5
The Group’s investments in joint ventures are
% ot ordi apit
Name Country o rdinary shz.are capital
ownership
CE Dugital Limited UK 500

The principal activity of CE Digital is that of managing multiplexes and is considered strategic to the Group’s

activities.

The registered addresses of the Group's joint ventures and associates are:

Company

Registered Address

EG Digital Lirnited

Peterborough, PE2 BEA

The Digital Radio Group (London) Limited
CE Digital Limited
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Media House. Peterborough Business Park, Lynch Wood,

30 Leicester Square. London, WC2H 7LA
30 Leicester Square, London, WC2H 7LA



13. Investments

Cost Fair value Total
£000 £'000 £°000
Cost
At1 April 2018 488 425067 428,545
Acquisitions 288 - 288
Additiens 213 - 213
Transfer 153 (428.057) (427.904)
Disposais - -
At 31 March 2020 1142 - 1.142
Provision for impairment
At 1 April 2019 308 - 308
At 31 March 2020 308 - 308
Net book value
At 31 March 2020 834 - 834
Cost Fair value Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Aprit 2018 6.088 - 6.088
Additions - 428.057 428.057
Disposals (5.600) - (5.800
At 31 March 2019 488 428057 428,545
Provision for impairment
At 1 April 2018 308 - 308
At 31 March 2019 308 - 308
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 180 428,057 428.237

During the year ended 31 March 2019 the Group acquired 100% of the share capital in Semper Veritas Holdings
S.arl and its subsidiaries ("Exterion Media Group™. On 14 November 2018, the CMA served an initia!
enforcement order {|EO} under section 72(2) of the Enterprise Act 2002 in relation to the completed acquisition,
placing significant restrictions on Global's management of the Exterion Media Group business. As a result, the
Exterion Media Group group was not consclidated and was held as an investment as at 31 March 2019 at fair
value, as assessed under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy under IFRS 13.

During the current year, the Group has consalidated the resuits of the Exterion Media Group group from the date
at which control was obtained, 16 Apnl 2019, and as such, has in the current year treated the acquisition as a
business combination under {FRS 3. As a result, the investment previously recognised in relation to Exterion
Media Group has been derecognised during the year. Entries related to the business combination can be seen
within note 24. The difference between the £428.1m cash investment held at 31 March 2019 compared to the fair
value consideration paid of £161.1m was the setftlement of existing external liabilities, see note 24.

Acquired investments relate to those held by the Exterion Media Group which is fully consolidated in the current
period.
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14. Trade and other receivables
31 March 2020 31 March 2018

£'000 £'000

Gross trade recelvables 215,798 85.677
L.ess provision for impairment (7,208) (358)
208,590 85,319

Other debtors 18,033 5544
Prepayments 14,056 22 860
Contract assets 14,960 11,267
255,639 124,990

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000
Balance at the beginning of the year 358 418
Movement 1n provision 6,850 (60)
Balance at the end of the year 7,208 358

The above table details the movements in the provision for the impairment of trade receivables.

The carrying value of trade and other receivables is a reasonable approximation of the fair value of trade and
other receivables. The Group measures the provision for impatrment at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses (ECL), estimated with reference to past default experience as well as the debtor's current financial
position.

There has been no change in significant assumptions made during the current reporting period and the provision
remains immaterial to the Group's trade receivable balances. The increase in the provision amount is due to
acquisitions made in the year, see note 24 for further detail.

The Group writes off a trade receivable where there is informaticn indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

There are no material overdue trade receivables that have not been provided against and there is no contractual
balance outstanding on financial assets written off during the year. The Group considers its expasure to credit
risk as immaterial given the majority of trade receivables are insured.

15. Trade and other payabies

The carrying value of trade and other payables is a reasonable approximation of the fair value of trade and other
payables. All of the Group's trade and other payables are held at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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15. Trade and other payables (continued)

Current

Trade payables

Other taxes and social security costs
Other crediters

Accruals

Contract liabilities

Non-current

Other creditors

16. Borrowings

Current

Bank loans and overdrafts

Accrued interest

Non-current

Bank fcans

Other loans

Total borrowings

61

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000
92,586 27812
2,918 9,882
23,271 13,248
100,808 85311
19,552 23871
239,134 160,125

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

70

70 -

31 March 2020 321 March 2019

£000 £:000
45,000 35.000
24,094 29,134
69,094 64,134

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000
359,678 301,407
1,126,056 1,250,942
1,485,734 1,652,349
1,554,828 1,616,483




16. Borrowings (continued)

The nominal value of the Group’s borrowings at each reparting date is as follows:

Accrued interest
Senior term loans
Shareholder loan notes
Connected party loan
Loan from parent entity

The fair value of the Group’s borrowings at each reporting date is as follows:

Accrued interest

Senior term loans
Shareholder loan notes
Connected party loan
Loan from parent entity

The interest rates on the Group's borrowings are as follows:

Interest rates on variable interest borrowings

Shareholder loan notes
Seniorterm loans

Connected party loan

interest rates on fixed interest borrowings

Sharehoider loan notes

Loan from parent entity

Discountrate on borrowings

Shareholder loan notes (post year eng 31/3/19)
Sharehoelder loan notes (pre year end 31/3/19)

Loan from parent entity
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31 March 2020

31 March 2019

£'000 £'000
24,094 29,134
410,000 341.250
1,043,298 950 D79
- 97 328

204,165 204,165
1,681,557 1.621.956

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

£'000 £000
24,094 29,134
404,678 336,407
1,004,898 1.014.192
- 114.594

121,158 122156
1,664,828 1616 183

31 March 2020

% above LIBOR

7.00%
2.00%
0.00%

31 March 2019,

% above LIBOR

7.00%
225%
10.50%

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Fixed rate Fixed rate
15.00% 15 00%
0.00% 0.00%
10.25% 7.91%
9.50% 7.91%
9.50% 7.91%




16. Borrowings (continued)

An analysis of the sensitivity of the fair value of borrowings to changes in the discount raie has been disclosed in
note 1 to the Group Financial Statements

The Group's borrowings have the following maturity profiie:
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£'600 £'000
Less than one year 176,442 174,284
Two to five years 775,883 735,802
Qver five years 1,343,837 14851.158
2,296,162 2.361.244

Less interest cash flows:
Senior term loans {36,361) 40,737}
Shareholder loan notes (578,244) (620,840
Connected party loan - (77.711}
Loan from parent_entity - -
Tota! principal cash flows 1,681,557 1621.856

The shareholder loans are listed on the International Stock Exchange ("TISE"). On 31 December 2019 the
Shareholder Loan notes had interest of £93.2m capitalised to the loan principal.

The Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilities of £10.0m at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: £10.0m).

Significant non-cash transactions in the year in respect of financing activities comprised unpaid interest which was
capitalised intoc borrowings of £90.8m (2019: £37.4m).

17. Funding and financial risk management

Fair value

Financial assets comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Financial liabilities
comprise trade and other payables and borrowings.

The fair value of trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables is not
materially different from their carrying value.

The following table shows the fair value of borrowings, including their value in the fair vatue hierachy:

Fair vaiue 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

hierarchy
£'000 £000
Senigr term loans Level 3 404,878 336 407
Shareholder loan notes Level 3 1,004,898 1,014,192
Connected party loan Level 3 - 114 594
Loan from parent entity Level 3 121,158 122,156
4,530,734 1,587.349

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Financial risk management
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17. Funding and financial risk management (continued)

The Group holds and uses financial instruments to finance its operations and to manage its interest rate and
liquidity risks. The Group primarily finances its operations using share capital, revenue and borrowings.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (interest rate risk and foreign exchange
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group 1s pnmarily funded by debt and although both shareholder and bank loans have increased during the
year, the Group's operations are cash generative, and the general exposure to liquidity risk is considered to be
low. The Group monitors performance against its banking covenants on a quarterly basis.

The Group does not engage in trading or speculative activities using derivative financial instrumenis.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit expaosure.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the
Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial mstruments.

Interast rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of a change in the Group's cash flows due to a change in interest rates. The Group
has both fixed rate and floating rate borrowings. The ratio of fixed to floating rate borrowings is monitored on an
ongoing basis to ensure that the Group is not too exposed to variability in interest rates.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of a change in the Group's cash flows due to a change in foreign currency
exchange rate. The vast majority of the Group's income and expenditure is in pound Sterling therefore the Group
is not exposed to significant foreign exchange risk.

In the year ended 31 March 2020 the Group earned 21% of its revenues from continuing operations and incurred
15% of its costs from continuing operations in EUR. The Group is therefore sensitive to movements in EUR
against GBP. Each 10% movement in EUR to GBP exchange rates has a circa £17.0m impact on revenue and a
circa £0.8m impact on retained profit. The impact on net assets from a 10% movement in EUR to GBP exchange
rates at 31 March 2020 would be £8 Om. The impact in the year ended 31 March 2019 is not material to the
Group as foreign operations expended as a result of the acquisition of Exterion in the period and did not exist in
the prior year. Management have utilised 10% for sensitivity analysis based on the level of fluctuations seen
during the current period,

Credif risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractuai obligations and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from cusiomers.

The Directors consider the Group's credit risk from cash, cash equivalents and depaosits to be low as the Group
cnly enters transactions with banks or financial institutions with a credit rating of A or above.

The Group has policies in place to manage potential credit risk from trade receivables. The Group mitigates the
risk of payment default by its customers by the use of trade credit insurance for high value customers. Customer
credit terms are determined using independent ratings agency data and regularly updated to reflect any changes

in customer circumstances or trading conditions. Trade receivables are reviewed on a regular basis by the
Group's credit control department to ensure debts are recovered in full.

The Directors do not expect any significant losses of receivables that have not been provided for.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The

Group's finance deparntment regularly monitors forecasts of the Group's liguidity requirements to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational needs.

Capital management

The Group relies on capital for organic growth. The Group defines capital as equity as shown in the Statement of
Financial Position plus net debt (total borrowings less cash) and seeks to achieve an acceptable return on gross
capital.
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The Group manages its capital structure using a number of measures and taking into account its future strategic
plans. Such measures include ensuring the Group maintains sufficient liquidity from the cash that the Group has
generated from operations.

18. Provisions

£000
Al 1 Aprii 2019 11464
Additicns 4228
Acquisitions 14,879
Effects of movements in foreign exchange 332
Transferred during the year (604)
Ulilised dunng the year (5,442)
At 31 March 2020 24 857

£'000
At1 Apni 2018 1.374
Utilised during the year 10,243
Released during the year {153)
At 31 March 2019 11,464

The breakdown of provisions between current and non-current is as follows

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000
Current 5,898 1,413
Nor-current 18,959 10,051
Total 24,857 11.464

Provisions include dilapidation provision costs (£21.3m) and other (£3.6m) faor the year ended 31 March 2020.

Dilapidation provision represents the Group's estimated cost for removing advertising structures as agreed in its
franchise agreements and the cost of returning its teased offices and warehouses to its original state at the end of
the lease term. The estimated cost is discounted at a risk free rate with a similar currency and remaining term as
the provision, whichever is shorter.

Transfers relate to onerous lease provisions which are no longer required under IFRS 16 and have been offset
against the right of use asset recognised on transition date.
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19. Deferred tax

Property, piant and . . lnterest restricted under
N Financial )
equipment and Tax losses . corpoerate interest Other Total
. 3 instruments .
intangible assets . restriction
€000 £000 £'000 £'00C £200 2000
Deferred tax asse's’ 4313 ' 704 - 8907 296 15420
Deferrag @ax nabilites 135 738 - 2475- - 1268 138 481,
A 31 Maren 2018 21225: 1704 2475 5307 28 123,061,
CHarge ' the «ncome statement 3774 1682} (15 BSR: 1323 (249 (17 578)
Racagrised irother comprerensre 1 0051 . _ - 156 {843
ncoms
AgQaregirihe year (22 039) 5133 - - (154c6,
Dis£osea nthe year 4 998 153) n - - 4,945
A3l March 2020 145 497y 7102 (22 373) . 8584 {265) 152 449
Deferred tax assets 21,836 7,102 - - 189 29,127
Deferred tax liabilities {67,333) - (22,373) 8,584 (454) (81,576}
At 31 March 2020 o (45,497) 7,102 (22,373) 8,584 (265) (52,449}
Delerrec 13x assels 5844 1908 3185 3a 1391
Deferred tax habdtes g227 - 14925 1196, 14 349
A 21 March 2018 13383 1903 325% 1162, 1822
Credit 10 ihe Income s'alemert 5064 112 V5 734, 8307 85 7210
Reco@nised in siber compranansee a8 se
neome
Acaurad e yegr 32 906 . G03 . - {31991,
At 3% March 209" 13 225) " 704 (2475: 8907 28 (23061
Deferred tax assats’ 4313 " 04 - 8307 296 15420
Deferred iaz lanities 135738 - 12 475; - {258 13848}
A2 34 March 2008 131225 1704 12475 2507 28 23065

Deferred tax is provided in full on taxable temporary differences under the liability method using applicable tax
rates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is
an intention to settle the balances net

The following table lists the Group's unrecognised deferred tax assets:

31 March 2020 31 pMarch 2019

£'000 £'000

Droperty. plant and equipment - 183
Tax losses 36,534 15,985
Interest pad 9,493 -
Interest restncted under corporate interest restnchon (CIR) carried forward 17,871 579
63,898 16 827

These potential deferred tax assets have not been recognised on the basis that it is not sufficiently certain when
taxable profits that can be utilised to absorb the reversat of the temporary difference will be made in the future.

"These numbers presented within this note for the year ended 31 March 2019 have been restated in relation to
recognizing a deferred tax asset on the impact of business combinations on the corporate interest restriction
received by the Group with relation to taxation. This deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent it offsets
against deferred tax liabilities created in accounting for business combinations.

The impact of this adjustment is £9.0m on profit for the year and deferred tax assets held on the statement of
financial position, as at 31 March 2019.
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20. IFRS 16 Leases (Group as a lessee}
{a) iIFRS 16 ieases at 31 March 2020

The impact of IFRS 18 for the year ended 31 March 2020 increases operating profit by £18.6m, reflecting the
removal of IAS 17 operating lease expenses of £108 4m and replacing this with IFRS 16 depreciation of £87.8m.
Profit before tax decreases by £5.1m, reflecting the operating profit change together with the IFRS 18 net finance
expense of £23.7m. Tax therefore decreases by £1.0m and results in an after tax decrease of £4.1m. Prior year
finance lease obligations under IAS 17 have been reclassified to lease liabilities on transition to {FRS 16 and
during the year amounts of £46.3m and £55.0m were capitalised to right of use assets and lease liabilities. The

depreciation charged on right of use assets on these contracts was £7.8m as well as £3.2m interest expensed to
the P&L.

(b) Modifications of leases

In the context of Covid-19 health crisis, the Group has negotiated reductions in fixed and minimum guaranteed
rents with its concession grantors without consideration or modification of the other terms of contract. The Group
has recognised modification as a decrease of £12.9m to the lease liability and a gain of £0.4m in the income
statement.
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20. IFRS 16 Leases (Group as a lessee} {(continued)

Praperty Fleet - Franchise Total

Right-of-use assets contracts
£'000 £000 £'000 £:060

Cost
At 1 April 2619 . 41,363 802 186 247 228512
Additions 2,01 797 121 532 124 340
Madifications 63 n {2.976) (2914}
Effects of movement in exchange rates 147 56 1989 2192
Acquisitions 14 090 2828 126178 142898
Disposals (406 {120} {32.377) {32.903)
Impairment (521; - {521
As at 31 March 2020 56 747 4262 400 593 461 602
Accumulated depreciation and impatrment
At Apnl 2019
Charge for the year 7668 1877 86 082 95 827
Effects of movement in exchange rates 21 12 345 378
Acquisitions - _
Disposals (248) {116} (26 354) (26.718)
Impairmert - - - -
As at 31 March 2020 7 441 1773 B0 OT3 69 287
Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2020 49 306 2 489 340 520 392,315

The group leases several assets including properties, motor vehicles and franchise contracts. The average lease
term is 15 years. Inciuded in franchise contracts additions is an amount of £23.3m construction in progress which
has been transferred from property, plant and equipment.

Amounts recognised in profit and loss:

£'000
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 85 627
Interest expense on lease liabilities 26,958
Expense relating to shott term leases 12,202
Expense relating to variable lease payment 139.382

The total cash outflow for leases amounted to £124.9m.
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20. IFRS 16 Leases (Group as a lessee) (continued)

Year ended 31

March 2020
Lease liabilities

£'000

Maturity Analysis
Year 1 87.703
Year 2 55,256
Year 3 44,823
Year 4 34,104
Year 5 21,348
Onwards 184878
428213

Year ended 31

March 2020
£'000

Analysed as:
Non-current 340,510
Current 87,703
428213

21. Pension schemes

The Group operates multiple pension schemes on behalf of its employees. Three of these penston schemes are
in the UK and post-acquisition of Exterion Media Group a French pension scheme is also included. The group
operates a number of defined contribution schemes including Global Radio Group Personal Pension Plan
{"GRGPPP").

All current employees are eligible to join the GRGPPP, which new employees are enrolled in automatically when
they begin employment with the Group. At 31 March 2020, 1,315 (2019: 1,376} employees were active members
of this scheme. The Group makes age-related employer contributions to the scheme. At 31 March 2020 there
were 520 members of the multipte Qutdoor defined contribution schemes.

The Capital Radio Pic Pension and Assurance Scheme ("CRPPAS") and the Midlands Radio Group Pension
Scheme (*MRGPS") are contributory defined benefit schemes. Both defined benefit schemes were closed to new
employees from 31 March 1995. At 31 March 2020, the MRGPS had 5 (2019: 5) active members and the
CRPPAS had 4 (2019: 4) active members. The trustees of each scheme are responsible for the governance of
the pension plan and the Group does not hold a direct interest in any of the scheme’s funds. The Group
operates within the schedule of contributions set out by the Trustees and is not subject to any minimum funding
requirements. No other entity is responsible for the governance of the plan beyond the board of trustees.

At the year end, the plan liabilities of the Group's defined benefit schemes had a weighted average duration of
17.4 years.

The Group contributed £5,652,000 (2019: £5,025,000) to the schemes. This contributior included £2,264,000
(2019: £2 368,000) to defined benefit schemes and £3,388,000 (2019: £2,657,000) to defined contribution
schemes.

Contributions amounting to £113,000 (2019: £27,000) were payable to the schemes at the end of the financial
year and are included in other creditors.

There were no plan amendments, curtailments or settlements during the year.
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21. Pension schemes {(continued)

The actual return on the two defined henefit pensian schemes assets over the period from 1 Apnt 2018 to 31
March 2020 was a loss of £1,262,000 for MRGPS and £398,000 for CRPPAS (gain for the period from 1 April
2018 to 31 March 2019 was £1,146,000 and £382 000 respectively). Each asset class has a quoted market
orice in an active market, as defined in IFRS 13.

The expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption is assessed by considering the current level of
returns on risk-free investments (primarily government bends) and the expectations for the risk premium of each
asset class. The expected return for each asset class is then weighted based on the asset allocation to develop
the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption for the portfolio.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position are as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 !

£'000 £000
Present value of funded obligations (41,292) {42.960)
Fair value of scheme assets 44,086 44 586
Surplué In scheme 2,794 1.626
Midlands 277 833
Capital 2,517 793
Total surpius 2,794 1,626

The amounts recognised in the consolidated tncome Statement are as follows
31 March 2620 31 March 2019

£°000 £'000
Current service cost (225} {203) '
Past service cost - (262)
Interest on obligation {1,041) (1.066)
E xpected return on scheme assets 1,106 1.124 !
Total (160) (407)
Actual return on scheme assets (1,658) 1.528
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21. Pension schemes {continued)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£'000 £000
Opening defined benefit obiigation 42,960 40.752
Current senice cost 225 203
Past service cost - 262
Interest cost 1,041 1066
Contributions by scheme participants 22 22
Actuariai {gains) / iosses . (1,942) 1.768
Benefits paid (1,014) (1,114)
Clesing defined benefit obligation 41,292 ' 42,960

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £'00C
Qpening fair value of scheme assets 44,586 41 841
Expected return on assets 1,108 1.124
Actuanal (losses) f gains (2,764) 404
Contnbuticns by employer 2,264 2.368
Contributions by scheme participants 22 22
Benefits paid {1,014) (1,114)
Expenses paid by scheme (114) {59)
Closing fair value of scheme assets 44,086 44 586

The total amount recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of actuarial losses on
assets is £2,764,000 (2019: gain of £404,000) and the amount recognised for actuarial gains on liabilities is
£1,942,000 (2019 loss of £1,769,000). '

The two schemes are fully funded by the Group and the scheme members who contribute a percentage of
salary. The funding requirements are based on the pension fund’s actuarial measurement framework set out in
the funding policies of the plan.

The Group expects to contribute £272 000 to its defined benefit pension schemes in 2020 (2019: £254,000).
The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2018

Equities 15.69% 17.61%
Bonds 29.63% 29.33%
Diversified growth funds 46.36% a3 77%
Gilts 7.70% 7.44%
Cash 0.71% 1.85%
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21. Pension schemes (continued)}

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting dates were {expressed as weighted averages):

31 March 2020 31 March

2019

Discount rate 2.35% 2.45%
Future salary increases 2.90% 3.45%
Future pension increases 3.35% 3.55%
‘nflation assumption 2.40% 295%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.

The assumed fife expectations on retirement age 65 are:

31 March 2020 31 March
2019
Number Number
Retiring today
Males 2241 22.0
Females 24.0 239
Retiring in 20 years
Males 235 234
Females 25.5 255
Amounts for the current and previous year are as follows
31 March 2020 3 Maren 207G 31 March 31 Marer 31 March
268 2017 045
£000 £00C £000 £60 £600
Defred kaneft obligaucn (41,292) .42 3601 140 TE3. 41333 135367
Schneme assets 44,086 44586 41841 43990 38 39"
2,794 1625 1084 1362 3524
Eapenence agusiments on scherme «abibbes 1,942 11 769) 207 '5 306 t B4
Sxpenence agusimenis 20 scheme asses {2,764) AC4 1£14, 3a 12 T35,

Under |AS 19 both schemes show a surplus. In accordance with IAS 19, the Group has recognised an asset on
the Statement of Financial Position in relation to the surplus in the schemes because the Group has an
unconditional right to realise the surplus during the pian or when the plan is settled.

The Group is exposed to a number of risks relating to the defined benefit schemes (the "schemes”) including
assumptions not being borne out in practice. The most significant risks are as follows:

Assel volatility

There is a risk that a fall in asset values is not matched by corresponding reduction in the value placed on the
schemes. The schemes hold a proportion of growth assets, which are expected to outperform corporate or
government bond yields in the iong term but gives exposure to volatility and risk in the short term.

Change in bond yields

A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the scheme’s habilities, although this will
be partially offset by an increase in the value of the scheme’s corporate bond holdings.

inflation risk

The majority of the scheme's liabilities are linked to inflation where higher inflation will lead to higher scheme
liabilities. Some of the scheme assets are either unaffected by inflation or loosely correlated with inflation (e.g.
growth assets), meaning that an increase in inflation will generally increase scheme liabilities.
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21. Pension schemes {continued)

Life expectancy

An increase in life expectancy will lead to an increased value being placed on the scheme’s liabilities. Future
mortality rates cannot be predicted with certainty.

Actuanal assumption sensitivity

The discount rate is set by reference to market conditions at the reporting date and can vary significantly
between periods. The earnings increases are finked to inflation and so set by reference to market conditions at
the reporting date. The mortality assumptions used are set by considering the experience of the scheme’s
members, and by making an allfowance for possible future improvements in longevity. Mortality assumptions are
difficult to set accurately, and forecasting rates of future mortality improvement is inevitably speculative.

The discount rate, earnings increases, and inflation rates are set by reference to market conditions at the
reporting date and can vary significantly between periods.

A decrease in the discount rate by 0.1% will increase the scheme’s liabilities by £695,000 {2019: increase of
£776,000).

Anincrease in inflation and salary growth assumptions by 0.1% will increase the scheme’s liabilities by £226,0600
(2019: increase of £269,000).

The French pension scheme relates to a retirement indemnity plan and jubilee awards. This includes employees
transferred to subcontractor for which the maximum pension liability has been agreed and the liability is retained
with the French subsidiary.

An amount of £6.1m relates to a provision for retirement payments, of which £1.9m relates to transferred
employees with agreed pension amounts and £4.2m recorded based on actuarial calculation in compliance with
IAS19. According to the French labour iaw, a company is obliged to pay retirement indemnities on the retirement
of permanent employees. Employees, who voluntarily ieave or are dismissed, are not entitled to such a payment.
The payment depends on the length of Group service at retirement and final salary.

An amount of £0.1m relates to a provision for jubilee awards calculated in line with IAS 19 and based upon
actuarial assumptions.

These defined benefit plans are not backed by assets for this respective purpose. Therefore, a provision is
recorded for the full obligation.

31 March 2020

£'000
Retirement Indemnity plan 5,963
Leng term service awards 137
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations 6,100
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21. Pension schemes (continued)

Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation

Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost

Interest cost

Curtailment

Actuarial losses

Foreign exchange

Benefits paid

Ciosing defined benefit obligation

Expense recognised in the income statement:

Current service cost
Curtailment

Immediate recogniticn on gain

Interest on defined benefit pension pian obiigation

Closing defined benefit abligation

Retirement

31 March 2020

Long term
Indemnity plan service awards

Total
31 March 2020 31 March 2020

£'000 £'000 £'000

6,861 146 7.007

310 4 314

53 1 54

{1,053) (8) {1,061}

188 0 188

(252) (4) (258)

(144} (2 (148)

5,963 137 6,100
Retirement Long term

Indemnity pilan

service awards Total

31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2020

The expense is recognised in the following line items in the income statement

Administrative expenses
Finance expenses

£°000 £000 £'000
(310} (4) (314)
1,053 8 1,061
- ©) 0}
(53) (1) (54)
690 3 693
GBP
Retirement Long term

Indemnity plan

31 March 2020

service awards Total

31 March 2020 31 March 2020

£'000 £'000 £:000
743 4 747
{53) 1 (54)
690 3 693




21. Pension schemes (continued)
Actuarial gains and losses recognised directly in equity in the statement of comprehensive income during the
year:

Retirement Long term

Indemni | i d
lty plan service awaras Total

31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000

Recogmsed 1n the year 188 - 188

Principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) at the year-end were as follows

Retirement *;:r'f_’ct:'m
i

Indemni lan

n ty P awards

31 March 2020 31 March 2020

Discount rate 0.8% 0.8%

22. Non-controlling interests

£°000
At 1 Apnl 2019 11,721
Acquisitions during the year -
Share of profit after taxation for the year ' 2881
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (2,155)
Disposals (9.722)
At 21 March 2020 2,725

£'000
At 1 April 2018 12,710
Acquisitions during the year 159
Share of profit after taxation for the year 2240
Dividends paid to non-contralling interests (3.428)
At 31 March 2019 11,721

The disposal of NC| above reflects the derecognition of NCI in the period related to the Festival division, which
was s50ld during the period. The value of NCI held at 31 March 2020 in reiation to Festivals is £nil (2019: £9.5m)
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23. Share capital
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£ £

Authorised, issued, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 171,889,147 171889147

171,889,147  171,889.147

24. Business combinations

During the year. the Group made two acquisitions in the out-of-home ("'Qutdoor”) marckst

Nams Date of acquisition Country % Ownership Purchaser Busmess Unit
5 I S
Sermper Venias Holding Sarl 16/04/201% Luxembourg 100 0% Globa RLadl? ger\/lce‘: Qutdoor
1mite:

Business Boards B WV 11:10,2019 Netheriands 100 Q% Extenon Media Qutdoor
Metherlands B V'

Outdoor acquisitions
Exterion Media Group

The Group diversified into Qutdoor during the prior vear, making a series of strategic acquisitons into the sector.
These acquisitions will allow the Group to further expand its advertising offering to clients and consumers,
providing opportunities for vertical integration as well as geographical diversification.

The acquisition of Exterion Media Group was not considered a business combination under 1IFRS 3 as at the
prior year as the CMA served an initial enforcement order (IEQ) under section 72(2) of the Enterprise Act 2002 in
relation to the completed acquisition, placing significant restrictions on Global's management of the Exterion
Media Group business. The CMA cieared the completed acquisition on 16 April 2019, from which date control
passed to the Group and the Exterion Media Group businesses fully consolidated.

During the year ended 31 March 2020 Exterion Media Group, as well as the two outdoor businesses acquired in
the prior year, form an operating segment and a single cash-generating unit, with separate reporting and discrete
financial mformation assessed by management on a monthly basis.

The fair valuation of the acquired assets and liabilities remained in progress as at the 31 March 2019, as
permitted within the measurement period under {FRS 3, however has been finalised at the current reporting date.
The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired, purchase consideration and goodwill for Exterion
Media Group is listed below:

Business Boards B V.

The purchase of the Business Boards B.V completed in October 2019 and is defined as a business combination
under {FRS 3, with Semper Veritas Holding S a.r.i Media Netherlands B.V acquiring 100% of the Company’s
share capital.

The fair valuation of the acquired assets and liabilities was finalised as at the 31 March 2020 and the fair value of
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired, purchase consideration and goodwill is listed below.



24. Business combinations (continued)

Semper Veritas Holding S.a.r.} Business Boards B.V. Total

£'000 £000 £°000

Intangible assets 216 186 12,153 228,339
Praperty. plant and equipment 80.839 80.839
Trade and other receivables 130496 72 130.568
Cash 14.741 288 15.02¢
Other assets 291 - 291
Right of use assets 142,896 - 142 896
Trade and other payables (406 067) {419) (406.486)
L ease liabilites (182 930} - (182,930
Deferred tax liability (13.158) {2.6835) {15.793)
Net assets acquired (16,706) Q.459 (7.247)
Goodwill 177.828 2.431 180,259
Total consideration 161,122 11.890 173.012

Satisfied by:

Cash 161.122 10,760 171.882
Deferred consideration 1,130 1.130
161.122 11,890 173.012

Goodwill is calculated as the difference between the fair value of consideration and acquired assets and
liabilities. None of the purchased geodwill is deductibie for tax purposes.

Deal-related costs of £2.1m have heen charged to administration expenses in the Income Statement for the year
ended 31 March 2020 relating to the Exterion Media Group and are not recognised within consideration.

The cashflow in refation to the acquisition of Exterion was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The difference between the £428 1m cash investment held at 31 March 2019 compared to the fair value
consideration paid of E161.1m was the settlement of existing external liabilities. The de-recognition of the
investment balances held in prior period due to the CMA approval process is detailed further in note 13

Since the acquisition dates, the acquired entities have contributed £389 2m to the Group's revenue and £7m to
operating loss. If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 April 2019, the acquired entities would have contributed
£406.9m to the Group's revenue and £7m to operating loss.

Prior year acquisitions

During the prior pertod the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of the OQutdoor Plus and Primesight
groups. The acquisitiocn consideration was disclosed in the financial statements for the period ended 31 March
2019, however at this date the IFRS 3 measurement period of one-year post acquisition had not lapsed therefore
the valuation attributed to the fair value of tangible and intangible assets was not finalised As this period has
now been reached, in accordance with IFRS 3 the prior year has been restated for the finalised fair value of
acquired assets, impacting the fair value attributed to both tangible and intangible assets.

This restatement has resulted in a reduction of acquired net assets of £1.2m and an increase to goodwill of
£1.2m.

No other revisions have been made in relation to these revisions.
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25. Disposals

The disposal of the Festivals operations was finalised during the period with the final disposal being completed in
September 2019. The consideration, including estimated working capital was £47.3m, with £47.1m received in
cash and £0.2m of deferred consideration recetvable i 20/21 financial year which has subsequently been
received by the group post balance sheet date. The operations have been disclosed as discontinuing operations
in the year with the prior period being restated.

The group recognised a 10ss on disposal of £1.4m with the contribution from the disposed operations in the
current period contributing £2 5m pre-tax loss to the Group operations in the year. The tax charge in the year
relating to the discontinued operations is £0.2m therefore resufting in a £2.3m post tax loss contribution.

26. Share-based payments

The Group operates cash-settled share-based payment arrangements as foilows.
The Growth Shares Scheme (“the Scheme”)

On 30 January 2015, a number of directors acquired C, D. E and F shares in GRHL, for which the directors paid
unrestricted market vaiue. Further on 1st August 2017 a number of directors and senior managers acquired G
shares in GRHL, for which the directors and senior managers paid unrestricted market value. The C, D, E, F and
G shares are subject to a put and call cption structure whereby the directors and senior managers may sell the
shares to GMEL, or GMEL may acquire the shares from the directors for cash, within various 60 day windows
between 1 August 2017 and 30 September 2025. The value at which the shares can be bought or sold shall be
determined by a formula based on the growth in value of the shares over a certain minimum threshold

value. The shares provide the holder with an interest in the growth of the business beyond that threshold, which
has been set at 20% above the original value in the case of the C,D,E and F shares and 17.5% in the case of the
G shares.

On 10 December 2019, the company acquired 70% of the D shares and 70% of the G shares for market value.
The unacquired shares remain with the directors and senior managers as “hanging shares” with no sale rights

The number of C. D, E and F shares i1ssued in 2015 and (5 shares issued in 2017 and outstanding at 31 March
2020 was 254,545 (31 March 2019: 421,150).

The EBITDA used to determine the value of the C, D E, F and G Shares will be the actual or forecast EBITDA for
the year ended closest to the date of disposal.

Share-based payment expense
The charge recognised in the Income Statement in respect of the Scheme was £7 266,000 (2019 £4,835.000).
Share-based payment liability

The Scheme requires the Group to pay the intrinsic value of these share-based payments to the employee at the
date of exercise. The iiability is re-valued at each reporting date and settlement date with any changes to fair
value being recognised in the profit and loss account.-The Group has recorded liabilities in respect of unvested
grants of £5,651,000 (2019: £14,306,000}).
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27. Commitments and contingencies

The Group's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are set out below:

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2019
£000 £'0C0
Land and buildings
Within one year 57 7.539
Between two and five years . 21479
After five years - 38,921
57 67,939

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2019
£'000 £'000
Vehicles and equipment
Within one year 63 1,236
Between two and five years 1 673
After five years -
64 1,809

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2019
£000 £'000
Franchise Fee Commitments
Within one year 2,460 42 101
Between twe and five years - 120,426
After five years - 199,188
2,460 361.715

The Group leases property, motor vehicles, office equipment and adventising sites. The Group's leases do not
include any material contingent lease payments, purchase options, escalation clauses or restriction clauses.

The significant decrease in the year is due to the application of IFRS 16 from 1 April 2019 and the recognition of
lease liabilities. Please see note 20 within these financial statements. Remaining balances relate to those leases
which are out of the scope of IFRS 16.

28. Related party transactions

During the year the Group traded with its associates, joint ventures and with entities with common control to the
Group. All transactions were in the normal course of business and priced under normal trade terms. All
outstanding balances are repayable on demand. Balances and transactions between the company and its
subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.
Transactions between the Group and its associates are disclosed below.

The Company's immediate parent company is Global Radio Group Limited (Jersey). Details of loans outstanding
with this entity are given in note 16.

During the year, the Company was charged £1,335,334 (2019: £1,299,598) in respect of digital radio services by
CE Digital Limited, an associated undertaking of the Group, of which £nil was cutstanding at 31 March 2020
(201%: £nil). The Company received £286,891 (2019: £399,025) in respect of legal expertise and engineering
time from CE Digital Limited.
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28. Related party transactions {continued)

Digital Radic Group (London) Limited, an associated undertaking of the Group, operates a digital radio multiplex
and during the year the Company paid £136,123 (2019: £94 074) to this company for transmission services. The
Company had an outstanding balance owing of £nil at 31 March 2020 (2019: £nil).

Now Digital East Midlands Limited, an associate of the Group, operates digital radio multiplexes and during the
year the Company paid £1,069,873 {(2019: £1,038,834) to this company for transmission services. The Company
had an outstanding creditor of £nil at 31 March 2020 (2019: £nil).

Radio Centre Limited, in which the Group has an investment, is a trade body promoting commercial radio to
advertisers. Radio Centre Limited is funded by levies paid by the commercial radio industry in the UK based on
volumes of advertising revenue During the year ihe Company paid £1,737,928 (2019: £1,724 478) in levies to
Radic Centre Limited and had an outstanding balance of £nil at 31 March 2020 (2019: £nil).

Globai Radio Services Limited also provides contract accounting services for which it charged £41,142 for the
year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: £40,138) to the Group's non-wholly owned subsidiary Independent Radio
News Limited (IRN)}, a provider of news services to commercial radio. In addition, the Company's share of the
IRN rebate to client stations for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to £3,535.784 (2019: £3,459,067) At
the financial year end the net balance due to Independent Radio News Limited at 31 March 2020 was
£1,408,173 (2019: £1,390.475).

During the year the Group had a number of recharge arrangements with various members of the Global
Entertainment and Talent Group, with whom the Group shares a director. As at 31 March 2020 the outstanding
debtor was £288,809 (2019: £123 915).

The Group considers the Directors to be key management personnel. Related party transactions with key
management personnel have been disciosed in note 6.

In the opinion of the Directors, there were no other related party transactions during the year.

29. Immediate and ultimate parent company

In the opinion of the Directors the Company’s immediate and ultimate controlling company is Global Radio Group
Limited, a company incorporated in Jersey.

The largest and smailest group in which the resuits of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Giobal
Media & Entertainment Limited.

30. Guarantees, financial commitments and contingent liabilities

Guaranltees

The Company will guarantee the debis and liabilities of certain of its UK subsidiaries at the reporting date in
accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006. The Company has assessed the probability of loss
under these guarantees as remote and the full list of subsidiaries is disclosed within note 3 of the Company
financial statements. i

Security

The assets of the Group are pledged to their bankers as security against loans by way of a floating charge over
the assets.

VAT Group

The Company is a member of a group for VAT for group purposes, resulting in a joint and several liability for
amounts owing by other Group companies for unpaid VAT.

Financial commitments

The Group has entered into agreements with transmission supply companies and digital multiplex operators for
the transmission of its radio stations for periods up to 2028 at competitive prices and to ensure supply. At the
year end the commitments to purchase space on transmitters was £96m (2019: £104.5m).

The appendix to the Group Financial Statements does not form part of the audited Annual Report and Financial
Statements.

80



31. Events after the Balance Sheet date

IFRS 16

Post year-end due to the Covid 19 situation the Group continued to negotiate with lessors to obtain fuher
extension on waivers of minimum gurantees of Franchise fees.

Covid-18

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic the Group benefited from the government's job retention scheme to help meet the
cost of furloughed roles throughout the group which shouid generate savings up to 31 August 2020.

In April a formal agreement was reached with the lending syndicate of banks providing externat borrowing
facilities to remove covenants for a period of 12 months. In October further agreement was reached with the
lending facilities in regards {o relaxing covenant requirements untii September 2020

Note 1.j Going Concern has further detaiis on the steps that the Directors have taken post year end in regards to
responding to the Covid-19 pandemic.

The Directors note the national lockdown from 4 November 2020, and do not believe it changes the assessment
as to the going concern assessment.

Carrying value of intangible assets including Goodwifl

The Directors continue to closely monitor the future forecasts of the business due to the Covid-19 situation. In
regards to the assumptions used in any future impairment tests it is toc early to determine whether there would
be an impact on the carrying vailue of the intangible assets.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Appendix to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Alternative Performance Measures

The Group measures its normal trading performance on a regular basis using a range of financial and non-

financiai key performance indicators, the key being adjusted EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxation,
depreciation, amaortisation and non-recurring items).

A reconciliation between the statutory measure ‘operating profit’ to the alternative measure 'EBITDA’ is shown
below, covering all Group operatiens (both continuing and discontinued). The impact of discontinued EBITDA can

be referred to in note 2 of the consolidated financial siatements.

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2020 March 2019
Note £'000 £'000
Operating (loss) / profit (continuing operations) (159,543) 49.301
Operating loss (discontinued operations) (2,509) (6 959)
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment 11 23,922 11,543
Amaortisaton of intangibles 10 36,926 25.058
Depreciation on IFRS 16 right of use assets 20 95,627 -
EBITDA (5,577) 78,943
Movement in fair value of put cptions - (962)
Qther operating expenses 260,493 39227
Adjusted EBITDA 254,916 117.208

Adjusted EBITDA is considered a key performance measure for the Group given that:

a) ltis a proxy for cash flows and helps to assess and manage liquidity across the Group;

b) The measure is used in the Growth Share Scheme in tracking performance, and therefore has an impact

on Directors’ remuneration on vesting dates; and

¢) The measure is used by the Group's lenders as part of the debt covenants, and as such reporting and

analysis is required monthly.

The key performance measures used by the Group have not changed from the prior year and management's
interpretation of other operating expenses remains consistent. Management continue to identify the following
items as non-operational or non-recurring in nature and are excluded in adjusted EBITDA:

Depreciation and amortisation These do not represent cash costs and are removed from the
measure

Movement in fair value of put options These relate to acquisition activity and are therefore non-recurring in
nature

Other operating expenses These mnclude any charges or credits relating to non-recurring items

including restructuring and integration costs, such as launch costs

including rebranding, redundancy costs, as well as costs of
acquisition

Impairment These are considered to be non-recurring charges and are therefore

removed

A breakdown of non-recurring costs, or other aperating expenses, is shown below:
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Non recurring costs

Group Exceptional costs
Festivals Exceptional costs
Radic: Exceptional costs

Outdoor: Exceptional costs

Year ended 31 March

Year ended 31

2020 March 2019
£'000 £'000

- 25419

852 1,705
14,296 11,747
245,345 356
260,493 39,227

Significant non-recurring items within the radio operating segment include costs of acquisition, integration costs
related to the recent Qutdoor acquisitions and of the regional restructure. Non-recurring costs within the Outdoor
operating segment include the impairment of franchise fees and goodwill (as discussed in note 10), integration
related costs as well as the write back of liabilities transferred to other Group entities in the year. Festivals non-
recurring costs include professional costs associated with disposals made in the year, including the disposat of put

options.,
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Company Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2020
Company number 06251684

Note
Fixed assets
Investments 3
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 4
Cash
Trade and other payables 5
Net current assets
Totat assets less current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5
Net liabilities
Equity
Share capital 6

Retained deficit

The Company’s loss for the year was £191.4m (2019 profit of £38.2m).

The notes on pages 86 to 94 form part of these financiai statements.

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
499,507 92 581
499,507 92,581
822,742 1,289,837
15 26
822,757 1,289,863
(269,040) (71,229
553,717 1,218,634
1,053,224 1,311,215
(1,485,942) (1,5582,491)
(432,718) (241 276)
171,889 171,889
(604,607) (413,165)
(432,718) (241,276)

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 5 November 2020

and were signed on its behalf by:
D.D. Singda.
Director

5 November 2020
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Share capitai Retained Total equity

(note 6) deficit
£'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 April 2019 171,889 (413 165) {241,276)
L gss for the year - (191,442) {191,442)
At 31 March 2020 171,889 (604,607) {432,718)
Share capital Retained Total equity

(note 6) deficit
£'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 April 2018 171,889 (451,325) (279.436)
Profit for the year - 38,160 38,160
At 31 March 2018 171,889 (413,165) (241,276)

The notes on pages 86 to 94 form part of these financial statements.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

1.  Accounting pelicies for the Company financial! statements
a) Reporting entity

Giobal Media & Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) is an incorporated company limited by shares and
domiciled in the United Kingdom. ls registered address is 30 Leicester Square, London, WC2H 7LA.

The Company’s principal activity was the operation of commercial radio stations in the United Kingdom and the
sale of advertising across its network.

The Company financial statements were approved by the board of Directors on 5 November 2020,

b) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
100 Application of Financial Reporting Requirements ("FRS 100") and Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework (*FRS 101") and the Companies Act 2006.

As permitted by Section 408(2) of the Companies Act 2006 information about the Company's empioyee numbers
and costs have not been presented.

As permitted by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company'’s Profit and Loss Account and
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income and related notes have not been presented as the Company’s Group
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

c) Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are presented in pound sterling {(£), which is the Company’s functional and
presentational currency. All amounts have been rounded ta the nearest thousand, uniess otherwise indicated.

d) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis and are in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006

The: accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financiai
statements.

In preparing these financial statements the company has taken advantage of all disclosure exemptions canferred
by FRS 101. Therefore, these financial statements do not include:

+ certain comparative information as otherwise required by EU endorsed IFRS;

« certain disclosures regarding the company’s capital;

- a Statement of Cash Flows;

+ the effect of future accounting standards not yet adopted,;

+ the disclosure of the remuneration of key management personnel; and

« disclosure of related party transactions with other wholly-owned members of the group headed by
Global Media & Entertainment Limited.

Im addition, and in accordance with FRS 101, further disclosure exemptions have been adopted because
equivalent disclosures are included in the Group financial statements of Global Media & Entertainment Limited.
These financial statements do not include certain disclosures in respect of:

« Financial Instruments {other than certain disclosures required as a result of recording financial
instruments at fair value};

» Fair value measurement {other than certain disclosures required as a result of recording financial
instruments at fair value); and

* Impairment of assets.

e} Investments

Investments are included in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less amounts written-off, representing
impairment in value, which has been recorded at fair value. Impairment charges are recorded if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements
1. Accounting policies for the Company financial statements (continued)

1] Going concern

At the date of these financial statements, the Directors have carried out a detailed and comprehensive review of
the business and its future prospects. In particular they have compared the forecast future performance of the
Company and anticipated cash flows with the available working capital facilities and covenants contained in the
banking arrangements that form part of the Company’s current financing structure and, in the light of current
economic conditions, have considered the ability of the Group to meet its obligations as they fall due. in the
opinion of the Directars, the Company are expected to be able to continue trading within the current
arrangements and consequently the financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.

g) Accounting policies for the Company financial statements

The Company’s accounting poiicies are the same as the Group’s accounting policies, as detailed in note 1 to the
Group financial statements, for the following:

Company FRS 101 accounting policy Greup tFRS accounting policy Note
New accounting standards New accounting standards 1h
Critical accounting estimates and judgements Critical accounting estimates and judgements Ti
Debtors Trade and other receivables 1q
Cash Cash 1r
Share capital . Share capital 1s
Creditors Trade and other payables 1t
Interest receivable and similar income Finance income and expense v
interest payable and similar expense Finance income and expense iv
Financial instruments Financial instruments 1w
Current and deferred tax Current and deferred tax 1x
Revenue recognition Revenue recognition 1bb
Fair value measurement Fair value measurement 1dd

2. Directors

Information on the Company's Directors is provided in note 6 to the Group financial statements.

3. Investments

Investments in

subsidiary

companies
£'000

At 1 April 2019 92.581
Additions - 657,559
Impairment (250,633)
At 31 March 2020 499,507

During the year ended 31 March 2020 the Company acquired 100% of the shares in Bell Holdco Limited, a
subsidiary within the Group, from Global Radio Services Limited, another Group entity for £143,666,000 in
exchange for intercompany loans.

During the same period the Company acquired 257,416,000 ordinary £1 shares in an existing subsidiary, Global
Radio Acquisitions Limited in exchange for intercompany loans.

Additionally, the Company acquired shares in Global Radio Holdings Limited from Global Radio Acquisitions
Limited - both of which are subsidiaries of the Group, for £256,477,000 in exchange for intercompany loans.
Following this, Global Radio Haldings is now wholly owned by the Company.

The Company impaired its investment in Global Radio Acquisitions Limited during the year.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

3. Investments (continued)

The Company's subsidiaries, including subsidiaries heid by indirect holding companies, are:

% ordinary share capital

Name Country .
ownership
Arrow Digitat Limited United Kingdom 100
Atlantic Broadeasting Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Audio HQ LLC United States of Amenca 65
Beat FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Bell Bidco Limied® United Kingdom 100
Bell Intermediate Limited” Urited Kingdom 100
Buzz FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Cambridge and Newmarket FM Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital {COWM) Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Gold Hampshire Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Gold Kent Limited Urited Kingdom 100
Capital Gold Manchester Luimited” Urited Kingdom 100
Capitai Gold Sussex Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Interactive Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Online Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio {London} Limited United Kingdom 100
Capitat Radio Investments Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Capitai Radio Limited Unned Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Restaurants Group Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Restaurants Limited {United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Telstar Entertanment Direct Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Trustee Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Television Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Xtra Limited™ Urited Kingdom 100
Castleform Limited Urited Kingdom 100
Central European Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 100
Champon FM Limited United ingdom 100
Cheerdale Limited United Kingdom 100
Chill Radio Limited” United Kingdom 100
Chiitern Radio Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Choice FM London Limited United Kingdom 100
Choice FM North London Lirmited United Kingdom 100
Classic FM BY Netherlands 100
Classic FM Limited* United Kingdom 100
Continental Angel Limited United Kingdom 100
Core Digital Radic Limited United Kingdom 100
Cotswold Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
DAX US Inc United States of America 100
Deansgate 1001 Limited United Kingdom 100
Deltrack Limited* United Kingdom 100
Devonar Radio Limied Umited Kingdom 100
Digital Audio Exchange Limited* United Kingdom 100
Digital News Network Limited United Kingdom 100
0Q Radio Services Linted* United Kingdom 1Q0
East Anghan Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Ecast Ventures Limited United Kingdom 100

* Exemption fram Audit by Parent Guarantee — Entities’ debts and liabilities are guaranteed by the Company at
the reporting date in accerdance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006. See note 30 of the consolidated

financial statements.

** Direct holdings of Global Media & Entertainment Limited as at the date of signing.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements
3. Investments (continued)

The Company's subsidiaries, inciuding subsidiaries hetd by indirect holding companies, are:

Name

Country

% ordinary share capital
ownership

EssexRadio Limited*

Expressway Limited

Falcon Qutdoor (North) Limited™

First Oxfords hire Radwo Company Limited”
Galaxy Rado Birmingham Limited™
Galaxy Radio Limited

Galaxy Radio Manchester Limited*
Galaxy Radio North EastLimted*
Galaxy Radio Yorkshire Limited-

GCap Media (CRUD) Limited

GCap Media (FPRL)Y Limited

GCap Media (The Jazz) Limited

GCap Media Limted

Gemint Radie Limited”

Global Live Limited”

Global Media Group Services Limited
Global Media Ventures Limied™
Global Music Television Limited* **
Global Qutdcor Media Limited (formerly Exterion Media (UK) Limited)
Giobal Cutdoor Media Holdings Lrmited™ **
Glabal Radic (aM) Limited™

Global Radio Acquisitions Limited* **
Giobal Radio Digiai Limited

Global Radio Hampshire Limited™
Global Radio Holdings Limited™ ™"
Glokat Radio Limited”

Global Radio tondon Limited*

Global Radio Media Management Limited*
Global Radio Midiands Limited*

Global Radio Northwest Limited™
Global Radio Publishing Limited™
Global Radio Senices Limited

Globat Radio UK Limited **

GM Radio News (UK) Limited

GM&E GmbH

GM&E Sarl

GMG Radio Limited

GWR (Locatl Area) Limited

GWR (Trustee Company) Limiled

GWR (West) Limited™

GWR East Holdings Limited”

GWR Group Limited”

GWR Hungary (Investmenis) Limited
GWR International Investments Limited
GWR International Limited

GWR New Zealand Licences Limited
GWR New Zealand Limited

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdem
Umted Kingdom
Urmited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kinggom
Uniteg Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kinggom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdem
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Germany
France
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Umited Kingdom
Umnited Kingdem
United Kingdem
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
New Zealand
New Zealand

100
100
120
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
- 100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
55
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

* Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee — Entities’ debts and liabilities are guaranteed by the Company at
the reporting date in accerdance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006. See note 30 of the consolidated

financiai statements.

** Direct holdings of Global Media & Entertainment Limited as at the date of signing.
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Gilobal Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

3. Investments {(continued)

The Company’s subsidiaries. including subsidiaries held by indirect holding companies, are.

% ordinary share capital

Name Country .
ownership

GWR Radio (South East) Limited” United Kingdom 100
GWR Radio Limited Unrted Kingdom 100
Harlow FM Limited United Kingdom 99.8
Healthbuild Limited United Kingdom 100
Heart 106 FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Heart Radio Limned United Kingdom 100
Heart TV Limited WUnited Kingdom 100
Hereward Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Hit40 UK Limited United Kingdom 100
Hopstar Limited” United Kingdom 100
Independent Radio News Limited United Kingdom 55

Industrral Curation Limnted United Kingdom 555
Investors in Radho Limited Unrted Kingdom 100
Invicta Concerts and Promotons Limited United Kingdom 160
Jams of London Limited United Kingdom 100
Juice Holdco Limited* United Kingdem 100
Lancashire Broadcasting Company Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Lantern Radio Limited United Kingdom 89

LBC 1152 Limited United Kingdom 100
LBC Radio Limited~ United Kingdom 100
DAX Digial Audio Exchange inc Canada 100
Leicester Sound Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Lite Spaces Limited~™ United Kingdom 100
Livetime Limited United Kingdom 100
Marcher Radio Group Limited* United Kingdom 100
Maxx Qutdoor Limited~ United Kingdom 100
Mid Anglie Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Mwah Mwah Limited Linited Kingdom 100
My Kinda Bath Limited United Kingdom 100
My Kinda Shacks Limited United Kingdom 100
My Kinda Square Limited United Kingdem 100
Neal Street Blues Limited United Kingdom 100
Ocean FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Qrchard FM Limited* United Kingdom 100
Crehard Media Limited Unitsd Kingdom 100
Outdoor Plus Limited* United Kingdom 100
Oval (709) Limited Umted Kingdom 100
Piymouth Sound Limited* United Kingdom 100
Power FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Prestfold Limited United Kingdom 100
Primesight Airport Advertising Limited United Kingdom 100
Primesight Arports Limited United Kingdom 100
Primesight Billboards timited* United Kingdom 100
Primesight Communications Lirnited United Kingdom 100
Primesightintermediate Holdco Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Primesight Limited United Kingdom 100
Prock Licence (NTLRSL) Lim:ted United Kingdom 100

* Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee — Entities' debts and liabilities are guaranteed by the Company at
the reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006. See note 30 of the consolidated

financiai statements.

** Direct holdings of Global Media & Entertainment Limited as at the date of signing.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

3. Investments (continued)

The Company’s substdiaries, including subsidiaries held by indirect hoiding companies, are:

Name

Country

% ordinary share capital
ownearship

Project lconic Bidco Limited* United Kingdom 100
Project lconic Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100
Project lcenic Midco Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Radio Broadiand Limited™ United Kingdem 100
Radio Invicta Limited* United Kingdom 100
Radio Mercury Limited~ United Kingdem 100
Radio Orwell Limited United Kingdom 100
Radio South Limited* United Kingdem 100
Radio TrentLimited* United Kingdem 100
Ram FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Reat and Smooth Limited* Unrted Kingdom 100
Real Radio (North East) Limited™ United Kingdom 10Q
Real Radio (North vest) Limited™ ‘United Kingdom 100
Real Radio (Scotiand) Limited* United Kingdom 100
Real Radio Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Riviera Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Rock Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Saxon Radic Limited United Kingdom 100
Scott Piace 1002 Lunited United Kingdom 100
Scott Place 1003 Limited United Kingdom 100
Scott Place 1004 tLimited United Kingdom 100
Smooth Digital Radico Limited United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radio Investments Limited™* United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radio London Limited* United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radic Scotland Limied* United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radic West Midlands Limited” United Kingdom 100
Scuth Hams Radiec Limited United Kingdom 871
Southern Radio Group Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Southern Radio Limited* United Kingdom 160
Storm (GWR) Limited United Kingdom 100
Storm Breadcasting Limited United Kingdom 100
Suffolk Group Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Tainside Limited* United Kingdom 100
Thames Valiey Broadcasting Group Limited Unnted Kingdom 100
Thames Valley Broadcasting Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Thamesquote Limited* Umited Kingdom 100
The Digital Radic Greup {Investments) Limited” United Kingdom 100
The Digital Radio Group Limited* United Kingdom 100
The Milton Keynes Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
The Northampionshire Broadcastng Company Limited United Kingdom 100
The Storm (Digital Radic) Limited United Kingdom 100
This is Global Limited United Kingdom 100
TS Heldings Limited United Kingdom 100
Two Counties Radio Limited* Unsted Kingdom 100
Vibe FM Limited United Kingdom 100
We the Unicorns Limited* United Kingdom 100
Welovelocal.com Limited* United Kingdem 100

* Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee — Entities’ debts and liabilities are guaranteed by the Company at
the reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2008. See note 30 of the consolidated
financial statements.

** Direct holdings of Global Media & Entertainment Limited as at the date of signing.
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3.  Investments (continued)

The Company’s subsidiaries, including subsidiaries held by indirect holding companies, are:

% ordinary share capital

Name Country ownership
Waest Country Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 160
Westward Radio Limitad Unned Kingdom 100
Westward Television Limited United Kingdom 100
Wiltshire Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Wirral FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Afm Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Xfm Manchester Limited® United Kingdom 100
Pop buzz Limited* United Kingdom 100
Exterion Media {UK) Limited (formerly Globat Dutdoor Media Limited) United Kingdom 100
Global Newco One Lirnited United Kingdom 100
Global Newco Two Limited United Kingdom 100
Doubleplay 1 Limited” United Kingdom 100
Doubleplay i Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Doubleplay Il Limited* Unrted Kingdom 100
Exterion Group Holdings Limited Cayman Islands 100
Exterion Holdings (BVI} Limited British Virgin tslands 100
Exterion Holdings (France) SAS France 100
Exterion Holdings (HK; Limited Hong Kong 100
Exterion Holdings (UK) Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Exterion Holdings | (Netherlands) B v Netherlands 100
Exterion Holdings 1l {Natherlands) B v Netherlands 100
Exterion Leasing (BDA) Limited Bermuda 100
Exterion Leasing (UK) Limited” United Kingdom 100
Exterton Limited™ Urited Kingdom 100
Exterion Media (France) SA France 100
Exterion Media (Ireland) Limited Ireland 100
Exterion Media (Netheriands) B v Nethenands 100
Extenon Media Heidings Limited” United Kingdom 100
Extcricn Mcdia Spain S AU Spain 100
Extenan Partner (BDA) GP Bermuda 100

* Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee — Entities’ debts and liabilities are guaranteed by the Company at
the reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006. See note 30 of the consclidated
financial statements.

** Direct holdings of Global Media & Entertainment Limited as at the date of signing.

The Company’s subsidiaries all have a year end of 31 March, with the exception of Audic HQ LLC which has a
year end of 31 December.
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3. Investments (continued)

The Company's subsidiaries registered address is 30 Leicester Square, London, WC2H 7LA with the exception

of the following entities:

Com pany

Registered Address

Audio HQ LLC

Bell Bidco Limited

Global Outdoor Media Holdings Limited
Bell Intermediate Limited

Classic FM BV

Continental Angel Limited

DAX US inc

Deltrack Limited

Falcon Cutdoor (North) Limited

GM Radio News (UK} Limited
GM&E GmbH

GM&E Sarl

GWR New Zealand Licences Limited
GWR New Zealand Limited
Independent Radic News Limited
Leanstream inc

Lite Spaces Limited

Maxx Outdoor Limited

Qutdoor Plus Limited

Prestfold Limited

Primesight Airport Advertising Limited
Primasight Airports Limited
Primesight Billboards Lirmted
Primesight Communications Limited
Primesight Intermediate Holdeo Limited
Primesight Limited

Project lconic Bidco Lirmited

Project keonic Holdings Limited
Project lconic Midco Limited

Real Radic (Scotland) Limited

Rock Radio Limited

Smooth Radio Scotiand Limited
Doubleplay | Limited™

Doubleplay i Limited*

Doubleplay Il Limited*~

Exterion Group Holdings Limited
Exterion Holdings (8V1) Limited
Exterion Holdings (France) SAS
Exterron Holdings (HK) Limited
Exterion Holdings (UK) Limited*
Exterion Holdings | (Netherlands) B v
Exterion Holdings Il (Netherlands) 8 vV
Exterion Leasing {BDA) Limited
Exterion Leasing (UK} Limited™
Exterion Limited*

Exterion Media (France) SA

Exterion Media (Ireland) Limited
Exterion Media (Netherlands) B.V
Exterion Media Holdings Limited*
Exterion Media Spain S.A U

Exterion Partner (BDA) GP

138 Millard Avenue New York 10708

7th Floor Laceon House. 84 Theobalds Road London, United Kingdom. WG 1X 8NL
7th Ficor Lacon House. 84 Theobalds Road. Londan, United Kingdem, WG 1X 8NL
7th Floor. Lacon House, 84 Theobalds Road. Lenden, United Kingdom, WC1X 8NL
Maarderpoort 2. 1411MA. Naarden, The Netheriands

7th Floor Lacon House. 84 Theobalds Road, London. United Kingdom, WC1X 8NL
874 Walker Road. Suice C City of Dover, County of Kent, Delaware 1890430

7th Floor, Lacon House, 84 Theobalds Road London. United Kingdom. WC1X 8NL
7th Floor, L.acon House. 84 Theobalds Road. London. Unted Kingdom WC1X 8NL
Academic House 24-28 Ovail Road London, NW1 700

c/o Tayior Wessing. 1 Sartorplatnz, 880331 Munich

4 rue Marvaux, 75002, Pans

10 Brandon Street. Wellington, 6011, New Zealand

10 Brandon Street. Wellington, 6011, New Zeaiand

Acadermic House 24-28 Oval Road. London, NW1 70DJ

2800 Park Place, 666 Burrard Strest. Vancouver, BC V8C 277

7th Floor Lacon House. 84 Theobalds Road London, United Kingdom WC1X 8NL
7th Floor. Lacon House. 84 Theobalds Road. Londen, United Kingdom, WC1X 8NL
7th Floor Lacen House, 84 Theobalds Road. London United Kingdom, WC1X 8NL
7th Floor, Lacon House. 84 Theobalds Road, Londen, United Kingdom, WC1X 8NL
7th Floor. Lacon House 84 Theobalds Road, London, United Kingdom, WC1X 8NL
7th Floor, Lacon House, 84 Theobalds Road, London, Umted Kingdom, WC1X 8NL
7th Floor, Lacon House. 84 Theobalds Road. London, United Kingdom, WC1X 8NL
7th Floor. Lacon House 84 Theobalds Road. London, United Kingdorm, WC1X 8NL
7ihy Floor, Lacon House. 84 Theobatds Road Londen, Umted Kingdom, WC1X 8NL
7th Floor Lacon House, 84 Theobaids Road. Londeon, United Kingdorm, WC1X 8NL
7th Floor. Lacon House 84 Theobalds Road London. Umited Kingdom, WC1X SNL
7th Floor Lacon House, 84 Theobalds Road. London, United Kingdom, WC1X 8NL
7th Floor, Lacon House, 84 Theobalds Road. London, United Kingdom. WC1X 8NL
1 West Regent Street, Glasgow, G2 1RW

1 West Regent Street. Glasgow. G2 1RW

1 West Regent Street, Giasgow, G2 1RW

7th Floor. Lacon House. 84 Theobalds Road. London, United Kingdom. WC1X 8NL
7th Floor Lacon House, 84 Theobalds Road. London, United Kingdom, WC1X 8NL
7th Floor. Lacon House, 84 Theobalds Road. London. United Kingdom, WC1X 8NL

Fioor 4 Willow House Cricket Square, PO BOX 268, Grand Cayman. K11104. Cayman Islands

2/F Paim Grove House, P O Box 3340 Road Town. Tortola. Brittsh Virgin Istands
3 Espt du Foncet, 82130 Issy-les-Moulineaux, France

Level 54, Hopeweli Center, 183 Queen's Road East Hong Kong

7th Floor. Lacon House, 84 Theobalds Road. Londen. United Kingdom, WC1X 8NL
Karspeldreef § Amsterdam Z.Q | 1101 CJ Netherlands

Karspeldreef &5 Amsterdam Z.0 . 1101 CJ Netherlands

Cumberland House 1 Victonia Street, 9th Floor, Hamiiton, Hm11, Bermuda

7th Floor, Lacon House. 84 Theobalds Road, London, United Kingdom, WC1X 8NL
7th Floor, Lacon House. 84 Theobalds Read. London, United Kingdom. WG 1X 8NL
3 Espl du Foncet. 82130 Issy-les-Moulineaux. France

25-28 Adelaide Road, Dublin 2D02 RYg8

Karspeldreef 8 Amsterdam Z.0.. 1101 CJ Netherlands

7th Floor, Lacon House, 84 Theobalds Road. London, United Kingdem, WG1X 8NL
Calle Valle de la Fuenfria, 3. 28034 Madrid, Span

Cumberland House 1 Victoria Street. 9th Floor, Hamitorn, Hm11, Bermuda
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4, Trade and other receivables
31 March 31 March 2019

2020
£'000 £'000
Loans to subsidiaries 822,742 367.313
Amounts owed by group undertakings 922,524
Deferred tax asset - -
822,742 1,289,837

The intra-group icans are repayable on demand. Loans within the Radio operating segment incur annual interest
of 8% and loans between Radio and Cutdoor segments incur annual interest of 7%, plus a variable element
based on 12-month GBP LIBOR.

5. Trade and other payables

Current

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

Bank loans and overdrafts 45,000 35.000
Accrued interest 24,027 29,225
Amounts owed to group undertakings 177,640 4529
Deferred tax liabrlities 22,373 2,475
269,040 71.229

Non-current

31 March 2020

31 March 2012

£'000 £000

Bark loans 359,678 301 407
Other lcans 1,126,264 1.251,084
1,485,942 1552 491

The intra-group loans are repayable on demand Loans within the Radio operating segment incur annual interest
of 6% and loans between Radio and Outdoor segments incur annual interest of 7%, pius a variable element

based on 12-month GBP LIBOR.

8. Share capital

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

£ £

Authorised, issued, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 171,889,147 171,889,147
171,889,147 171.889.147

7. Related party transactions

As disclosed in note 28 and in accordance with the exemptions in FRS 101 the Company is not required to
disclose related party transactions with key management personnel or between members of the Group. The
Company has not completed any related party transactions with any other entities or parties.

8. Immediate and ultimate parent company

In the opinion of the Directors the Company's immediate and ulimate controlling company is Global Radio Group

Limited, a company incorporated in Jersey.

The largest and smallest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Global

Media & Entertainment Limited.

9. Events after the reporting period

Please refer to note 31 of the Group accounts.



